ALAMEDA-CONTRA COSTA TRANSIT DISTRICT
PARCEL TAX FISCAL OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE

MINUTES
Special Meeting of the Parcel Tax Fiscal Oversight Committee
AC Transit General Offices
Floor Conference Room
1600 Franklin Street
Oakland, CA 94612

10th

Tuesday, December 3, 2013, at 2:00 p.m.
MEMBERS OF THE OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE
JANET ABELSON
ROBERT APODACA
ELOISE BODINE
MARK CHEKAL-BAIN
BEVERLY JOHNSON
MARIA VIRAMONTES
MATT WILLIAMS
DISTRICT OFFICERS
DAVID J. ARMIJO, GENERAL MANAGER
DAVID A. WOLF, GENERAL COUNSEL
LINDA A. NEMEROFF, DISTRICT SECRETARY
LEWIS CLINTON, CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

AC Transit Parcel Tax Fiscal Oversight Comm ittee

December 3, 2013

5

Page 1 of 6

PARCEL TAX FISCAL OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE
Tuesday, December 3, 2013, at 2:00 p.m.

ACTION
SUMMARY

The Alameda-Contra Costa Transit District Parcel Tax Fiscal Oversight
Committee held a special meeting on Wednesday, December 3, 2013.
The meeting was called to order at 2:01 p.m. by District Secretary
Linda Nemeroff.
1.

ROLL CALL
Members Present: Janet Abelson, Robert Apodaca, Eloise Bodine, Mark
Chekai-Bain, Matt Williams
Members Absent: Beverly Johnson, Maria Viramontes
District Officers and Staff Present:
· David Armijo, General Manager
David Wolf, General Counsel
Linda Nemeroff, District Secretary
Lewis Clinton, Chief Financial Officer

2.

SELECTION OF CHAIRPERSON
The Chair shall serve at the pleasure of the Committee and shall be
selected from the majority of the Committee members present.

APPROVED THE
SELECTION OF
JANET ABELSON
AS CHAIR

MOTION: BODINE/CHEKAL-BAIN to select Janet Abelson to serve as
· Chair of the Committee. The motion carried by the following vote:
AYES:S: Bodine, Chekai-Bain, Abelson, Apodaca, Williams
ABSENT:2: Johnson, Viramontes
Chair Abelson called for a round of introductions from the Committee
members and staff present at the meeting.

3.

PUBLIC COMMENT
There was no public comment offered.

4.

DISCUSSION/ACTION ITEMS:

4A.

Consider approving the minutes of the District Parcel Tax Fiscal
Oversight Committee meeting of December 5, 2012.

APPROVED

MOTION: WILLIAMS/APODACA to approve the minutes as presented.
The motion carried by the following vote:
AYES:S:Williams, Apodaca, Bodine, Chekai-Bain, Abelson
I ABSENT:2:Johnson, Viramontes
AC Transit Parcel Tax Fiscal Oversight Committee
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4B.

Consider review and approval of the Measure V V Financial Statement
and the adoption of Resolution No. 13-1 determining that the
Measure V V funds collected during the 2012-13 Fiscal Year have been
appropriated and expended in Special Transit Service District One for
operation and maintenance activities (CFO Memo No. 13-01).

ADOPTED
RESOLUTION

13-01

Chief Financial Officer Lewis Clinton introduced the item and gave an
overview of the District's financial condition, noting that FY 2012-13
was a turning a point in that some of the difficult decisions that had
been made during the previous two fiscal years had begun to bear
fruit. He also commented on ridership, farebox, and other revenues,
noting that some subsidies had rebounded as a result of improvements
in the economy and discussed internal initiatives undertaken such as
performance management, revitalization of the District's mission,
major projects, fleet investments, and performance indicators.
Mr. Clinton introduced Vicky Rodriguez of Maze and Associates (the
District's auditing firm) who was present to address questions
regarding the Measure VV Schedules and Independent Accountant's
Report. Ms. Rodriguez advised that the document provided by Maze
and Associates was not an audit, but the agreed upon procedures for
the review of Measure VV funds. She advised that the agreed upon
procedures entailed the following:
Understanding the purpose of Measure V V;
Understanding what the eligible costs are;
Confirmation of the amount of funds received;
A review and test of service hours and service miles by county
and special transit service district; and
A review and test of operations and maintenance expenses in
total for the District against the methodology being used by the
District to ensure it is calculated correctly and accurately
applied to District No. 1 and District No. 2.
Ms. Rodriguez reported that in performing the agreed upon procedures
no discrepancies, issues, deviations or exceptions were found. She
further added that the Measure V V proceeds did not exceed eligible
expenses, noting that $29.4 million in Measure V V proceeds were
received versus total operations and maintenance expenses of $282
million for District No. 1.
In addition, Ms. Rodriguez also said that upon review, the Schedule of
Maintenance Cost Funded by Measure V V was corroborated with the
National Transit Database and that the allocation was calculated
In summary, Ms.
correctly and the percentages were correct.
Rodriguez reported that no discrepancies were found in any of the
calculations and that all ofthe service miles and hours matched as well.
AC Transit Parcel Tax Fiscal Oversight Committee

December 3, 2013

7

Page 3 of 6

Mr. Clinton added that the allocation methodology agreed to between
District No. 1 and District No. 2, noting that this methodology
determines how revenues and expenses are allocated between the two
Districts.
Chair Abelson asked what funds the allocation methodology applied to.
Mr. Clinton explained that the allocation methodology addresses
various funding sources and how they are applied to each District,
noting that some revenues such as property taxes were return to
source while others, like Measure J, could not be allocated to District
No. 2 because this was a Contra Costa Transportation Authority sales
tax.
Member Williams asked for clarification of the Schedule of
Maintenance Costs Funded by the Measure V V Tax, noting that it
showed money being spent in District No. 2. Ms. Rodriguez explained
that this schedule shows the two districts, but the second line from the
bottom (Measure V V Taxes) shows that the $29.4 million in revenue is
100% allocated to District No. 1.
Member Williams commented on his understanding that the cities of
Fremont and Newark were dissatisfied with the level of service being
provided and asked if there was a contract in place that said that
District No. 2 would receive a certain percentage of the service in the
District. General Counsel David Wolf clarified that there was a
Memorandum of Understanding with the cities which had not been
executed and that there had been numerous discussions about the
allocation methodology and the accounting behind it. When asked if
the cities were happy, Mr. Wolf responded that the cities had desires
that were not being met, i.e. better headways, service.
From the documents provided, Member Williams gleaned that the
revenue hours for District 2 were being subtracted from the revenue
hours for the entire District to show that Measure V V funds were only
being spent in District No. 1. He asked staff whether officials in
Fremont would feel this was fair. Mr. Wolf advised that there would be
no question at all with regard to Measure V V and that the focus was
entirely on AB 1107 funds.
Member Williams asked what percentage of service hours belonged to
District No. 2. Mr. Clinton advised that it was about 11% of the total
service.
Member Williams asked if the revenue vehicle miles and
hours equated to 11% of the service. Mr. Clinton advised that it came
out to 11.67% of the total service. Member Williams added that the
report provided to the Committee was a lot more informative than last
year.
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Mr. Clinton stated that Fremont and Newark recognize that Measure
VV revenue is for District No. 1 only.
In regard to providing more service in District No. 2, Chair Abelson
asked if the cities recognized that in order to get more service, they
would have to pay for it. Mr. Clinton advised that the District
frequently receives requests for more service, but the question is how
to pay for it.
General Manager David Armijo advised that there would be $1 million
in service enhancements in mid-December, which would be the largest
enhancement in the last three years, much of it in south Alameda
County, including District No. 2. In addition, there would be some other
minor adjustments throughout the system. He also said that because
revenues were growing more consistently and by controlling operating
costs, there would be an opportunity to expand service in 2014 and
2015 notwithstanding Title VI and California Environmental Quality Act
requirements which would add more time to the process.
Member Abelson inquired about Line 72. Mr. Armijo advised that the
headway on the 72M could be reduced from an hour to 30 minutes on
weekends and during peak hours.
Member Chekai-Bain asked about the financial impact associated with
the elimination of local redevelopment agencies. Mr. Clinton advised
that the District's budget was built around not having the funds,
however, a small influx of funds was received in FY 12-13 that were not
expected and no significant revenue is projected from this source in
the future.
MOTION: WILLIAMS/CHEKAL-BAIN to approve of the Measure VV
Financial Statement and the adoption of Resolution No. 13-01
determining that the Measure W funds collected during the 2012-13
fiscal year have been appropriated and expended in Special Transit
Service District No. 1 for operation and maintenance activities. The
motion carried by the following vote:
AYES:S:Williams, Chekai-Bain, Apodaca, Bodine, Abelson
ABSENT:1:Johnson, Viramontes

5.

COMMITTEE/STAFF COMMENTS
Chair Abelson commented that the documentation prepared for the
meeting was outstanding, clear and thorough and a vast improvement
over the prior year.
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Mr. Clinton communicated the Committee's importance to the District
and staff's desire that the Committee feel comfortable in their role and
fully supported by the staff.
6.

ADJOURNMENT
There being no further business to come before the Committee, the
meeting adjourned at 2:40p.m. The next meeting of the District Parcel
Tax Fiscal Oversight Committee is scheduled for December 2014.

Respectfully submitted,

Linda A. Nemeroff
District Secretary
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CFO Report No:
Meeting Date:

T~IVS/T

14-01
December 2, 2014

Alameda-Contra Costa Transit District

STAFF REPORT
TO:

District Parcel Tax Fiscal Oversight Committee

FROM:

James D. Pachan, Interim Chief Financial Officer

SUBJECT:

FY 2013-14 Measure VV Tax Proceeds to AC Transit Special Transit Service District
No.1

ACTION ITEM
RECOMMENDED ACTION(S):
Consider review and approval of the Measure VV Financial Statement and the adoption of
Resolution 14-01 determining that the Measure VV funds collected during the 2013-14 Fiscal
Year have been appropriated and expended in Special Transit Service District No. 1 (District 1)
for operation and maintenance activities.
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:
On July 23, 2008, the Board of Directors adopted Resolution 08-044 placing Measure VV on the
ballot. Like Measure VV's predecessor Measures AA and BB, the resolution required that an
independent fiscal oversight committee of community representatives (Committee) review the
use of the funds and provide an annual report to the Board. Upon the passage of Measure VV,
the Board adopted Resolution No. 08-064 establishing the Alameda-Contra Costa Transit District
Parcel Tax Fiscal Oversight Committee. The Committee is required to meet at least once per
year to determine that funds generated by the parcel tax measures have been expended in
accordance with the intentions of the voters. In addition, the Committee shall provide a written
report and/or resolution regarding its findings to the appropriate Board standing committee and
to the Board of Directors at the same meeting that the Chief Financial Officer makes his/her
report on the annual fiscal year audit.
The District received approximately $29.2 million in Measure VV funding for the FY 2013-14,
ending June 30, 2014. This revenue was used to cover the cost of operations and maintenance
of bus service within District 1. The attached financial statements include a Schedule of
Maintenance Costs Funded by Measure VV Taxes. The schedule shows that total maintenance
costs for District 1 were $53.3 million. Since there were no federal preventive maintenance
funds available during FY 2013-14, the entire $29.2 million of Measure VV received during FY
2013-14 was applied to the $53.3 million of maintenance expenses incurred during the period,
which left $24.1 million to be funded by other sources.
BUDGETARY/FISCAL IMPACT:
The audited financial statements for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2014 show Measure VV Tax
Receipts in the amount of $29.2 million for District 1.
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Report No. 14-01
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BACKGROUND/RATIONALE:
In 2002, the voters in District 1 approved Measure AA authorizing a $24 per year parcel tax over
five years for the purposes of preserving affordable local transportation services that allow
seniors and people with disabilities to remain independent, take students to and from school,
help East Bay residents commute to work, and reduce traffic and air pollution by reducing the
number of cars on the road. In 2004, the voters in District 1 approved Measure BB, in
replacement of Measure AA, which authorized AC Transit District to levy a special tax in the
amount of $48 per year, per parcel for ten years, commencing July 1, 2005. In 2008, the voters
in District 1 approved Measure VV, in replacement of Measure BB, which authorized the AC
Transit District to levy a special tax in the amount of $96 per year, per parcel for ten years,
commencing July 1, 2009. Proceeds from this special tax can only be used to fund the
operations and maintenance of bus service within District 1.
Revenue Collection History for each Measure
Measure

FY04/05

AA*

$6.9MM

BB**

FY08/09

FYll/12

FY12/13

FY13/14

$29.3MM

$29.4MM

$29.2MM

$15.1MM

VV***

*first year of revenue collection began FY03/04
**first year of revenue collection began FYOS/06
***first year of revenue collection began FY09/10

Measure VV proceeds are specifically designated for the operation and maintenance of bus
services and this revenue is essential to the sustainability of District operations in District 1. The
accounting of Measure VV funds for Operations and Maintenance Expenses by County and
Special Transit Service District for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2014 are shown in Attachment
2- Measure VV Schedules with Independent Accountant's Report.
On November 12, 2008, the Board of Directors adopted Resolution No. 08-064 establishing the
Alameda-Contra Costa Transit District Parcel Tax Fiscal Oversight Committee. The Committee is
required to meet at least once per year to determine that funds generated by the District's
parcel tax measures have been expended in accordance with the intentions of the voters. In
addition, the Committee shall provide a written report and/or resolution regarding its findings
to the appropriate Board standing committee and to the Board of Directors at the same
meeting that the Chief Financial Officer makes his/her report on the annual fiscal year audit. In
accordance with this resolution, the Committee is requested to review the use of Measure VV
funds as accounted for in the attached report and to provide a written report and/or resolution
to the AC Transit Board of Directors at the Regular Board meeting on December 10, 2014.
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Resolution 14-01 is attached for Committee's consideration in confirming that the Measure VV
funds collected during the 2013-14 fiscal year have been appropriated and expended in District
1 for operations and maintenance activities.

ATTACHMENTS
1:

2:
3:

Resolution 14-01
Measure VV Schedules with Independent Accountant's Report.
AC Transit Audited Financial Statements; Year Ended June 30, 2014

Department Head Approval:
Reviewed by:
Prepared by:

David Armijo, General Manager
Denise C. Standridge, General Counsel
James D. Pachan, Interim Chief Financial Officer
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ALAMEDA-CONTRA COSTA TRANSIT DISTRICT PARCEL TAX FISCAL OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE
RESOLUTION NO. 14-01
A RESOLUTION DETERMING THAT THE MEASURE VV FUNDS COLLECTED DURING THE 2013-14
FISCAL YEAR HAVE BEEN APPROPRIATED AND EXPENDED IN SPECIAL TRANSIT SERVICE
DISTRICT NO.1 FOR OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE ACTIVITIES
WHEREAS, on November 5, 2002, the voters in Special Transit Service District No. 1
(District 1) approved Measure AA which imposed a $24 dollar per parcel per year tax on
properties in District 1, for five years, for the operation and maintenance of AC Transit's
activities in District 1; and
WHEREAS, AC Transit Resolution No. 2098 created the Measure AA Oversight
Committee for the purpose of determining that the monies collected under Measure AA were
spent in District 1 for the operation and maintenance of AC Transit' services in District 1, as
those terms are defined in AC Transit Resolution No. 2067; and
WHEREAS, on November 2, 2004, the voters in District 1 approved Measure BB,
increasing the amount of the parcel tax to $48.00 per parcel per year for ten years commencing
on July 1, 2005; and
WHEREAS, upon the passage of Measure BB (with an increased time period and
amount) Resolution No. 05-031 was adopted repealing Resolution No. 2098 and establishing
the Measure AA/BB Oversight Committee, appointing its membership and amending Resolution
1
No. 2067 and 2135 modifying the reporting period from September 30 h to December 31'1 of
each year; and
WHEREAS, on November 4, 2008, the voters in District 1 approved Measure VV,
increasing the amount of the parcel tax to $96.00 per parcel per year for ten years,
commencing on July 1, 2009; and
WHEREAS, a special meeting of the Alameda Contra-Costa District Parcel Tax Fiscal
Oversight Committee was held on November 17, 2014, during which the Committee reviewed
information provided by Alameda-Contra Costa Transit District's Interim Chief Financial Officer
contained in CFO Memo No. 14-01;
NOW THEREFORE, the Alameda-Contra Costa Transit District Parcel Tax Fiscal Oversight
Committee does resolve as follows:
Section 1.
Determines that the Measure VV monies collected during the 2013-14
Fiscal Year were appropriated and expended for the operation and maintenance of AC Transit
services in District 1.
Section 2.
Board of Directors.

Authorizes the transmittal of a copy of this resolution to the AC Transit

Parcel Tax Fiscal Oversight Committee Resolution No. 14-0l
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Section 3.

This resolution shall become effective immediately upon its passage by
four affirmative votes of the Alameda-Contra Costa Transit District Parcel Tax Fiscal Oversight
Committee.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 2nd day of December 2014.

Chair of Alameda-Contra Costa District
Parcel Tax Fiscal Oversight Committee
Attest:

Linda A. Nemeroff, District Secretary
I, Linda A. Nemeroff, District Secretary for the Alameda-Contra Costa Transit District, do
hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution was passed and adopted at a Special Meeting of
the Alameda-Contra Costa Transit District Parcel Tax Fiscal Oversight Committee held on the
2nd day of December, 2014 by the following roll call vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Linda A. Nemeroff, District Secretary

Approved as to Form and Content:

Denise C. Standridge, General Counsel

Parcel Tax Fiscal Oversight Committee Resolution No. 14-01
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Alameda-Contra Costa Transit District
Measure VV Schedules with
Independent Accountant's Report
Year Ended June 30,2014

17

14-01 Att,2

This Page Left Intentionally Blank

18

MAZE

&ASSOCIATES

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT'S REPORT
ON APPLYING AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES
Board of Directors
Alameda-Contra Costa Transit District
Oakland, California
We have performed the procedures described below, which were agreed to by management of the
Alameda-Contra Costa Transit District (the District), solely to assist you in evaluating service
hours, service miles, and the allocation of operations and maintenance expenses by county and
Special Transit Service District (STSD) set forth in the accompanying schedules for the year
ended June 30, 2014. The District's management is responsible for the accompanying schedules.
This agreed-upon procedures engagement was conducted in accordance with attestation standards
established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The sufficiency of these
procedures is solely the responsibility of those parties specified in the report. Consequently, we
make no representation regarding the sufficiency of the procedures described below either for the
purpose for which this report has been requested or for any other purpose.
Our procedures and fmdings are as follows:

GENERAL
a.

We read the Measure VV voter approved ballot measure noting that the ten-year
parcel tax is levied for the purposes of providing essential transportation services,
including the operation and maintenance of bus services within District I.

b. We traced Measure VV funds received for the year ended June 30, 2014 to the
District's general ledger and to the independent confirmations received from the
County of Alameda and the County of Contra Costa.

SCHEDULE OF SERVICE HOURS AND SERVICE MILES BY COUNTY AND SPECIAL
TRANSIT DISTRICT
a. We tested the schedule for clerical accuracy and noted no clerical errors.
b. We compared service hours for the year ended June 30, 2014 to the worksheets
prepared by the District and found them to be in agreement.
c. We compared STSD No. 1 service hours for the year ended June 30, 2014 to the
worksheets prepared by the District and noted agreement of service hours by county.
d. We recomputed the net changes in service hours during the year ended June 30, 2014
by county and STSD, and noted no errors.
T

Accountancy Corporation
3478 Buskirk Avenue, Suite 215
Pleasant Hill, CA 94523

F
E

925.930.0902
925.930.0135
maze@mazeassociates.com

w mazeassociates.com
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Findings:

1. Service hours by STSD and by Alameda and Contra Costa counties agree to the
District's OTS 370 report for the year ended June 30,2014.
2. We noted total service hours increased 22,177 or !.3%.
e.

We compared service miles by STSD for the year ended June 30,2014 to worksheets
prepared by the District and found them to be in agreement.

f.

We compared STSD No. I miles for the year ended June 30, 2014 to the worksheets
prepared by the District and noted agreement of service miles by county.

g.

We recomputed the net changes in service miles during the year ended June 30, 2014
by county and STSD, and noted no errors.
Findings:

I. Service miles by STSD and by Alameda and Contra Costa counties agreed to the
District's OTS 370 report for the year ended June 30, 2014.
2. We noted total service miles increased 105,468 or .5%.

SCHEDULE OF OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE EXPENSES BY COUNTY AND SPECIAL
TRANSIT SERVICE DISTRICT
a.

We tested the schedule for mathematical accuracy and noted no mathematical errors.

b. We compared total expenses to the District's unaudited Statement of Revenues,
Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position for the Transit Fund for the year ended
June 30, 2014, and found them to be in agreement.
c.

We recomputed the total expenses before allocation by county and STSD, and noted
no errors.

d. We compared service hours and service miles by county and STSD to the Schedule
of Service Hours and Service Miles by county and STSD and found them to be in
agreement.
e. We recomputed the service hours and service miles allocation percentages and noted
no errors.

2
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f.

We traced expenses, allocated by county and STSD, to a worksheet prepared by the
District and found them to be in agreement. We noted that the District computed the
allocated expenses for Contra Costa County, STSD No. 1 as follows:
Total Expenses before allocation X (Service Hours allocation% (a) +Service
By County and STSD
Miles Allocation% (b))
2
Contra Costa County
STSD 1 Service Hours
Total STSD 1 Service Hours

(a) Service Hours allocation% ~

Contra Costa County
(b) Service Miles allocation%~ --i:S~T":'S~D~1~S:::,erv:-::"ic~ei-'M~il~e~s~

Total STSD 1 Service Miles
g. We recomputed expenses allocated to Contra Costa County, STSD No. 1 using the
above calculation and found the recomputed expenses to be in agreement with
amounts calculated by the District after giving effect to rounding.
h. We compared the method used to allocate operations and maintenance expenses to
Alameda STSD No. 2 to the District's stated allocation methodology and found them
to be in agreement.
i.

j.

We noted that the District computed the allocated expenses for Alameda County
STSD No. 1 as follows:
I.

Total expenses before
Allocation
by county and STSD

2.

Expenses allocated
to Alameda County

Expenses allocated
to Contra Costa County
STSDNo.l

Expenses allocated
to Alameda County

Expenses allocated

Expenses allocated
to Alameda County

to Alameda County
STSDNo. 2

STSDNo.l

We noted that the District allocated total operations and maintenance expenses to
STSD No. 1 by adding the sum of expenses allocated to Contra Costa County STSD
No. 1 plus expenses allocated to Alameda County STSD No. 1.

k. We recomputed the total allocation of operations and maintenance expenses to
Alameda County and Contra Costa County STSD No. 1, and found the recomputed
expenses to be in agreement with amounts calculated by the District after giving
effect to rounding.

!.

We verified that the Measure VV proceeds received by the District did not exceed the
operations and maintenance expenses allocated to STSD No. 1.

m. We noted that total District operations and maintenance expenses allocated to STSD
No. 1 exceeded Measure VV funding of $29,243,805 by $300,804,076 for the year
ended June 30, 2014.
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SCHEDULE OF MAINTENANCE COSTS FUNDED BY MEASURE VV TAXES
n. We obtained the Schedule of Maintenance Costs Funded by Measure VV Taxes
(Schedule) from the District.
o. We agreed Total Modal Expenses reported on the Schedule for function code 041
Vehicle Maintenance and 042 Non-vehicle Maintenance to the District's National
Transit Database Report, Operating Expenses (F-30) form with out exception.
p. We recalculated the percentage used to allocate costs reported on the Schedule by
using expense allocations reported in the Special Transit Service Districts No. 1 and
No. 2 Schedule with Independent Accountant's Report.
q.

We recalculated the percentage used to allocate Federal Preventative Maintenance
Awards reported on the Schedule by using the allocation reported in the Special
Transit Service Districts No. 1 and No. 2 Schedule with Independent Accountant's
Report.

r.

We agreed Measure VV Taxes to the Special Transit Service Districts No. 1 and No.
2 Schedule with Independent Accountant's Report.

s.

We compared Net Costs Remaining after Applying Federal Awards to Measure VV
Taxes and noted costs exceed Measure VV taxes.

We were not engaged to, and did not, conduct an audit, the objective of which would be the
expression of an opinion on the accompanying schedule. Accordingly, we do not express such an
opinion. Had we performed additional procedures, other matters might have come to our
attention that would have been reported to you.
This report is intended solely for the information and use of the District's Board of Directors and
management and the Measure VV oversight committee and is not intended to be and should not
be used by anyone other than those specified parties.

Pleasant Hill, California
September 30, 2014
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ALAMEDA-CONTRA COSTA TRANSIT DISTRICT
Schedule of Service Hours and Service Miles

by County and Special Transit Service District
Year Ended June 30,2014

For the
Year Ended
June 30, 2013

Net
Increase/
(Decrease)

For the
Year Ended
June 30,2014

SERVICE HOURS
Contra Costa - STSD No. I
Alameda- STSD No. I
Alameda- STSD No. 2
Total Alameda service hours
Total STSD No. I service hours

194,517

2,854

197,371

1,391,410
179,172

17,218
2,105

1,408,628
181,277

1,570,582

19,323

1,589,905

1,585,927

20,072

1,605,999

2,466,120

7,488

2,473,608

SERVICE MILES
Contra Costa- STSD No. I
Alameda - STSD No. I
Alameda - STSD No. 2
Total Alameda service miles
Total STSD No. 1 service miles

16,299,478
2,864,221

(13,531)
111,511

16,285,947
2,975,732

19,163,699

97,980

19,26!,679

18,765,598

(6,043)

18,759,555
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ALAMEDA-CONTRA COSTA TRANSIT DISTRICT
Schedule of Operations and Maintenance Expenses Funded by Measure VV Taxes
by County and Special Transit Service District
Year Ended June 30, 2014

Before Allocation

Contra Costa

B;r Coun!J:: and STSD

Coun!J:: STSD #1

Alameda Coun!J::
STSD#1.

STSD#l

Total
STSD#l

Total

EXPENSES
Operator wages
Other wages
Fringe benefits

$

Pension expenses
Services

24

'"'

Fuel and lubricants
Office/printing supplies
Bus parts/maintenance supplies
Utilities
Insurance
Other expenses
ADA paratransit joint ventore
Interest expense
Depreciation
Total expenses

58,529,701
47,106,428
88,907,913
39,858,936
26,509,489
17,358,118
529,348
13,694,210
2,898,562
7,115,199
2,176,666
26,080,353
1,239,902
39,493,720

$

$

45,742,183
36,207,640
68,971,341
30,921,030
20,795,027
13,342,053
406,875
10,525,846
2,227,936
5,468,990
1,673,061
20,407,790
96!,244
30,356,248

$

-

6,110,500
5,613,534
9,868,778
4,424,342
2,678,998
2,068,516
63,081
1,631,899
345,413
847,897
259,387
2,693,624
138,345
-~706,350

51,852,683
41,821,174
78,840,119
35,345,372
23,474,025
15,410,569
469,956
12,157,745
2,573,349
6,316,887
1,932,448
23,101,414
1,099,589
35,062,598

~~34,787,370

41,450,664

329,457,928

330,047,881

$

$

52,419,201
41,492,894
79,039,135
35,434,594
23,830,491
15,289,602
466,267
12,062,311
2,553,149
6,267,302
1,917,279
23,386,729
1,101,557

42,040,617

288,007,264

Measure VV revenues

5,050,825

24,192,980

-

24,192,980

29,243,805

Total Measure revenues

5,050,825

24,192 980

-

24,192,980

29,243,805

Net deficit

$

371498,545

6,677,018
5,285,254
10,067,794
4,513,564
3,035,464
1,947,549
59,392
1,536,465
325,213
798,312
244,218
2,978,939
140,313
4,431 122

$

(36,989, 792)

$

(263,814,284)

$

(41,450,664)

$

(305,264,948)

$

(300,804,076)

Allocation Percentage

197,371
12.29%

1,408,628
87.71%

1,605,999
100%

Service Miles
Allocation Percentage

2,473,608
13.19%

16,285,947
86.81%

18,759,555
100%

12.74%

87.26%

Service Hours

Average

See accompanying notes to the schedule.

ALAMEDA-CONTRA COSTA TRANSIT DISTRICT
Schedule of Maintenance Costs Funded by Measure VV Taxes
by County and Special Transit Service District
Year Ended June 30,2014

Maintenance Costs and Funding
Total Modal Expenses
041 Vehicle Maintenance
042 Non-Vehicle Maintenance

STSD #1
Amount

$46,237,894
7,100,561

Total Maintenance Costs

53,338,455

Measure VV Taxes

29,243,805

Net costs funded by other resources

%

88.84%
88.84%

STSD#2
Amount

$5,808,362
891,966
6,700,328

100.00%

$ 24,094,650

25

11.16%
11.16%

Total

$ 52,046,256
7,992,527
60,038,783
29,243,805

$ 6,700,328

7

%

$ 30,794,978
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ALAMEDA-CONTRA COSTA TRANSIT DISTRICT
Notes to the Schedule of Service Hours and
Service Miles hy County and Special Transit Service District and
The Schedule of Operations and Maintenance Expenses by
County and Special Transit Service District
Year Ended June 30,2014

1. General
On November 30, 2004, the voters approved Measure BB, which superseded the Measure
AA parcel tax authorizing Alameda and Contra Costa Counties (the Counties) to levy and
collect a parcel tax for the purposes of "preserving affordable local public transportation
services that allow seniors and people with disabilities to remain independent, take
students to and from school, help East Bay residents commute to work and reduce traffic
and air pollution by reducing the number of cars on the rood." The tax became effective
on July I, 2005 and was to terminate on June 30, 2015. However, on November 4, 2008,
the voters approved Measure VV, which supersedes the Measure BB parcel tax. Measure
VV became effective July I, 2009 and increased the annual parcel tax to $96 per parcel.
Measure VV is effective though June 30, 2019. Proceeds from this special tax can only
be used to fund the operation and maintenance of bus service within Special Transit
Service District (STSD) No. I. The District received approximately $29.2 million in
Measure VV taxes during the year ended June 30, 2014.
2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Schedule Presentation
These schedules are prepared under the guidelines of the agreement between the Contra
Costa Transportation Authority and the Alameda-Contra Costa Transit District that
essentially allocates expenses between STSD No. 1 and STSD No. 2. Consequently, they
do not present the fmancial position, changes in fmancial position, or cash flows of the
Alameda-Contra Costa Transit District.
3. Basis of Accounting
The Schedule of Operations and Maintenance Expenses by County and Special Transit
Service District has been prepared in accordance with the accrual basis of accounting.
4. Basis of Expense Allocation
The expenses on the Schedule of Operations and Maintenance Expenses by County and
Special Transit Service District are prorated to the Counties and the Special Transit
Service Districts. It is based on an equal weighing of the relationship of hours and miles
of service between the Counties and the Special Transit Service Districts within the
Counties.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Board of Directors
Alameda-Contra Costa Transit District
Oakland, California

Report on Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying. fman.c ial statements of the business-type activity of the AlamedaContra Costa Transit District (District) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2014, and the related notes
to the fmancial statements, which collectively comprise the District's basic financial statements as listed
in the Table of Contents.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these fmancial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of the fmancial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor's Responsibility
i·

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these fmancial statements based on our audit. We did not
audit the fmancial statements of the AC Transit Pension Trust Fund. Those fmancial statements were
audited by other auditors whose report heron has been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it
relates to the amounts included for the AC Transit Pension Trust Fund, is based on the report of the other
auditor. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to fmancial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan
_and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the fmancial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
fmancial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the District's preparation and fair
presentation of the fmancial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the fmancial statements.
T

Accountancy Corporation
3478 Buskirk Avenue, Suite 215
Pleasant Hill, CA 94523

F

925.930 .0902
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinions.
Opinions

In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of the other auditors, the financial statements referred to
above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the business-type activity
and Pension Trust Fund of the District as of June 30, 2014, and the respective changes in financial
position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that Management's
Discussion and Analysis, and Schedules of Funding Progress, be presented to supplement the basic
fmancial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic fmancial statements, is required by
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of fmancial
reporting for placing the basic fmancial statements in an appropriate operational, economic or historical
context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of
inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic fmancial statements. We do not express an opinion or
provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.
Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the fmancial statements that collectively
comprise the District's basic fmancial statements. The Other Supplementary Information Section as
listed in the Table of Contents is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part
of the basic financial statements.
The Other Supplementary Information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and
relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the Other
Supplementary Information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial
statements as a whole.
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated September 30,
2014, on our consideration of the District' s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the District's internal
control over financial reporting and compliance.

Pleasant Hill, California
September 30, 2014
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Management's Discussion & Analysis
This discussion and analysis of the Alameda-Contra Costa Transit District's fmancial performance provides an overview
of the District's activities for Fiscal Year 2014 with comparisons to the prior fiscal year.

Financial Highlights
•

At June 30, 2014, total assets were $497.9 million, an increase of $33.5 million or 7 percent compared to June 30,
2013, when it was $464.3 million. Total current assets at June 30, 2014 were $208.5 million, a decrease of $21.6
million or 9 percent due largely to the expenditure of designated capital funds on capital projects, offset by higher
receivables at year end. Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation increased by $55.1 million to $286.9 million.
Other Non-Current Assets remained stable at $2.5 million.

•

At June 30, 2014, total liabilities were $150.7 million, an increase of$5.4 million or 4 percent compared to June 30,
2013 when they were $145.3 million. Total current liabilities were $62.9 million, virtually unchanged over June 30,
2013. Total other non-current liabilities increased by $8.9 million or 16 percent from June 30, 2013 due to increases
in other post employment benefits (OPEB) and workers compensation liabilities.

•

For Fiscal Year 2014, operating revenues increased by $5.2 million or 8 percent to $68.6 million. There were
increases in passenger fares revenues of$2.2 million; contract services of$3.6 million, offset by a slight decrease of
$0.6 million in "other" operating revenues. In the case of passenger fares, it should be noted that as fares charged to
passengers did not change during the period, increased revenue is attributable to growth in ridership. At June 30,
2013 operating revenues were $63.4 million

•

In Fiscal Year 2014, total operating expenses were $352.6 million, an increase of $16.2 million or 5 percent
compared to $336.4 million at June 30,2013. While 2014 operating results reflect the District's continuing efforts to
control labor costs, particularly overtime, other expenses however, have increased in fringe, depreciation, and net
expenses of joint venture. These increases were partially offset with decreases in other categories.

•

For Fiscal Year 2014, non-operating revenues were $262.5 million, which is an increase of$0.7 million compared to
Fiscal Year 2013 when it was $261.8. This net increase was primarily comprised of increases in local funds of$3.5
million and local sales tax of$1.6 million, offset with notable decreases in property taxes of$3.0 million and federal
operating funds of $3.3 million.

•

At June 30, 2014, net position was $347.1 million, an increase of $28.1 million or 9 percent from June 30, 2013.
The 2014 increase resulted from increased in total revenues of $5.9 million, or 2 percent over 2013, capital
contributions of $51.5 million offset by an increase in total operating expenses of $16.2 million. At June 30, 2013
net position was valued at $319.0 million.

Overview of the Financial Statements
The Financial Section of this report presents the District's fmancial statements as two components: basic fmancial
statements and notes to the flnancial statements. It also includes other supplemental information in addition to the basic
financial statements.

Basic Financial Statements
The Statement of Fund Net Position presents information about assets and liabilities with the difference between the two
reported as net position. The change in net position over time is an indicator of whether the financial position of the
District is improving or deteriorating.
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The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position reports how have changed during the year and
presents a comparison between operating revenues and operating expenses. Operating revenues and expenses are related
to the District's principal business of providing bus transit services. Operating expenses include the cost of direct
services to passengers, administrative expenses, contracted services and depreciation on capital assets. All other revenues
and expenses not included in these categories are reported as non-operating.
The Statement of Cash Flows reports inflows and outflows of cash and is classified into four major components:
•

Cash flows from operating activities which includes transactions and events reported as components of operating

income in the statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position.
•

Cash flows from non-capita/financing activities which include operating grant proceeds as well as operating subsidy
payments from third parties and other non-operating items.

•

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities which arise from the borrowing and repayment (principal
and interest) of capital-related debt, the acquisition and construction of capital assets and the proceeds of capital
grants and District contributions.

•

Cash flows from investing activities which includes the proceeds from the sale of investments and receipt of interest.
Outflows in this category include the purchase of investments.

Notes to the Financial Statements
Various notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the information provided in the
basic financial statements. These are found innnediately following the financial statements to which they refer.

Other Information
This report also presents certain required supplementary information in accordance with the requirements of GASB. In
addition, supplementary infonnation and associated notes concerning compliance with the District's annual budget
appear innnediately following the required supplementary information.

Analysis of Basic Financial Statements

Assets:
•

At June 30, 2014, total assets were $497.9 million, an increase of $33.5 million or 7 percent compared to June 30,
2013, which were $464.3 million. Total current assets at June 30, 2014 were $208.5 million, a decrease of $21.6
million or 9 percent over June 30, 2013, due largely to the expenditure of designated capital funds on qualifYing
capital projects, partially offset by overall higher receivables of $12.3 million, an increase in inventory of $1.7
million, and pre-paid expense of $0.6 due to slightly higher insurance premiums. Capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation increased by $55.1 million to $286.9 million (please refer to the "Capital Program" section). Other
non-current Assets remained constant at $2.5 million.
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Alameda-Contra Costa Transit District
Net Position
(in thousands)
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2014
2014
Assets
Current Assets
Capital Assets
Other Non-Current Assets
Total Assets
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Long Term Portion of COPS
Other Non-Current Liabilities
Total Liabilities
Net Position
Invested in Capital Assets, net of related debt
Restricted for Capital Purchases
Restricted for Debt Service
Unrestricted
Total Net Position
Total Liabilities and Net Position

$

$

$

$

2013

208,519
286,860
2488
497,867

$

62,887
24,338
63,497
150,722

$

$

$

$

(21,555)
55,092

$

33,537

62,889
27,777
54,652
145,318

$

(2)
(3,439)
8,845
5,404

0%
-12%
16%

29%
-40%
-6%
0%

2%

$

$

$

58,126
(30,003)
(100)
110
28,133

$

464,330

$

33,537

$

$
$

497$67

%

230,074
231,768
2,488
464,330

202,095
74,531
1,605
40,781
319,012

260,221
44,528
1,505
40,891
347,145

$

Change

$

-9%
24%
0"/o
7%

~%

,2%

Liabilities:
•

At June 30, 2014, total liabilities were $150.7 million, an increase of$5.4 million or 4 percent compared to June 30,
2013 when they were $145.3 million. Total current liabilities were $62.9 million, remaining essentially flat when
compared to June 30, 2013. Several factors participated in this net result, including decreases in short term claims
liabilities, short term other post employment benefits (OPEB) liability, and unearoed revenue related to capital
program expenditures, offset by increases in accounts payable due to late invoice submission at year end, accrued
salary and wages due to timing, and increase in short term debt related to the certificates of participation (COPS).
The long term portion of the COPS is $24.3 million, a decrease of$3.4 million over the June 30, 2013 balance when
the liability was $27.8 million, due to normal scheduled payments.
Total other non-current liabilities are $63.5 million, an increase of $8.8 million or 16 percent from June 30, 2013
when it was $54.7 million. This is primarily due to increases in workers comp liability due to a less favorable
actuarial result, an increase in other post employment benefits (OPEB) due to the difference in funding for those
plans and the actuarial results, and an slight increase in leave liabilities. These increases were slightly offset by a
mildly favorable PLPD actuarial result.

Net Position:
•

At June 30, 2014, net position was $347.1, an increase of$28.1 ntillion or 9 percent from June 30, 2013 when it was
$319.0 million. The 2014 increase resulted from total revenues at June 30, 2014 of$331.1 million, an increase of
$5.9 million or 2 percent over June 30,2013 when it was $325.2 ntillion. This was offset by total expenses of$354.5
million at June 30, 2014, an increase of $16.8 million, or 5 percent, over June 30, 2013, when total expenses were
$337.7 million. The net of revenue and expense results in a loss before contributed capital of $23.4 ntillion;
however, contributed capital was $51.5 million, resulting in the increase to net position of$28.1 million at June 30,
2014.
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Revenue and Expense:
Alameda-Contra Costa Transit District
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
(in thousands)

For the Years Ended June 30,2014 and June 30,2013
2014
Revenues
Operating Revenues
Passenger Fares
Contract Services
Other
Total Operating Revenues

$

Non-Operating Revenues
Property Taxes

52,508
11,929
4,165
68,602

2013

$

50,357
8,330
4,720
63,407

Changes

$

%

2,151
3,599
(555)
5,195

43%
-12%
8o/o

-3%
3%
5%
-28%
6%
-92%
-0.1178
0.25%

4%

105,807
60,280
70,234
. 8,746
16,853
(90)
674
262,504

108,799
58,683
66,745
12,070
15,953
(1,175)
764
261,839

(2,992)
1,597
3,489
(3,324)
900
1,085
-90
665

Total Revenues

331,106

325,246

5,860

2%

Expenses
Operating Expenses
Operator Wages
Other Wages
Fringe Benefits
Depreciation
Fuel & Oil
Other Materials & Supplies
Services
Insurance
Net Expenses of Joint Venture
Other
Total Operating Expenses

58,529
47,106
128,755
39,495
17,359
11,345
26,510
7,115
8,515
7,863
352,592

58,526
46,363
116,849
35,420
18,613
12,393
26,593
11,529
2,249
7,842
336,377

3
743
11,906
4,075
(1,254)
(1,048)
(83)
(4,414)
6,266
21
16,215

0%
2%
10%
12%
-7%
-8%

Non-Operating Expenses
Interest Expense
Total Expenses

1,898
354,490

1,338
337,715

560
16,775

42%

(23,384)

(12,469)

(10,915)

88%

51,517
28,133
319,012

64,015
51,546
267,466

(12,498)
(23,413)
51,546

-20%
-45%
19%

Local Sales Taxes
Local Funds
Federal
State
Gain (Loss) on sale of capital assets
Interest Income
Total Non-Operating Revenues

Loss before Contributed Capital
Capital Contributions
Change in Net Position
Net Position, beginning of year*
Net Position, end of year

$

347,145
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$

319,012

$

28,133

0%

-38%
279%
0%
So/o

~%

2•;.

Operating Revenue:
•

For Fiscal Year 2014, operating revenues increased by $5.2 million or 8 percent. There were increases in passenger
fares revenues of $2.2 million, with a continued incremental migration of customers to electronic fare media, it
should be noted that the fares charged to passengers did not change during the period, growth in ridership generated
increased revenues. The increases in contract services of $3.6 million are due to a
non-recurring, intergovernmental subsidy for reduced fares. These increases were offset slightly by a decrease of $0.6 million "other"
operating revenues.

Alameda-Contra Costa Transit District
Comparison of Operating Revenue
Fiscal Year 2013/14 vs. Fiscal Year 2012/13
60
50
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Non-Operating Revenue:
•

For fiscal year 2014, non-operating revenues were $262.5 million, which is an increase of $0.7 million, or 0.25
percent, compared to fiscal year 2013 when it was $261.8 million. This net increase was primarily comprised of
increases in local funds and local sales taxes of $5.1 million, state funds of $0.9 million, a reduction in loss on sale
of capital assets of$1.1 million, offset with decreases in federal operating funds of $3.3 million, and property tax
revenues of $3.0 million due to onetime payments associated with the state mandated dissolution of redevelopment
agencies which were received in the prior fiscal year.
Local sales tax revenues increased from $58.7 million at June 30, 2013 to $60.3 million as of June 30, 2014, an
increase of $1.6 million. Increases in this category came from AB 1107 funds, offset by decreases in voter approved
Measures B, J, and VV, funds that are used for fixed route bus service as well as other programs. In the case of
Measure B, it should be noted however, that there was a funding swap from Measure B funds to state transit
assistance (STA); otherwise local sales taxes would have reported a slightly higher increase over fiscal year ended
June 30,2013.
Local funds were $70.2 million at June 30, 2014, an increase of$3.5 million, or 5 percent over June 30, 2013 when
they were $66.7 million. Local funds include regional measure 2 (RM2), transportation development act (TDA), as
well as local operating assistance funds. As of June 30, 2014 RM2 funds remained relatively stable, TDA funds and
local operating assistance funds increased over June 30, 2013.
State revenues, which include state transit assistance (STA), state pass through, and AB2972 funds, increased by
$0.9 million over June 30, 2013 .
Federal operating funds decreased by $3.3 million over June 30, 2013. This was primarily due to the final federal
preventive maintenance monies being earned in the prior fiscal year. It should be noted that the federal "ADA Set
aside" subsidy increased over the June 30, 2013 amount, softening the impact of the wind down of the preventive
maintenance program.
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Finally, loss on sale of capital assets decreased at June 30, 2014 by 1.1 million which contributed to the overall
increase in non-operating revenues.

BProperty Taxes BSaleofCapital Assets CLocal Funds DFederal

a state o Local Sales Tam

Blnterest Incane

When comparing the "Composition ofNon-Operating Revenue" pie charts from FY-12/13 (below) to FY-13/14 (above)
shifts in composition between these fiscal years included Local Funds, as a total of non-operating revenue, increased 2
percent to 27 percent of the total. Local Sales taxes also increased by I percent over FY-12/13, as did State revenues.
Federal funds, as a total of non-operating revenue, decreased from 5 percent to 3 percent, due to a final receipt of
operating funds for the Preventive Maintenance programs in FY-12/13. Property Taxes decreased by 2 percent . When
comparing the graphics, it indicates that other categories did not fluctuate.
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Expense Highlights
Operating Expenses:
•

In Fiscal Year 2014, total operating expenses were $352.6 million, an increase of $16.2 million or 5 percent
compared to $336.4 million in Fiscal Year 2013. While 2014 operating results reflect the District's continuing
efforts to control direct labor costs, particularly overtime, non-labor expenses have increased in several categories,
partially offset with decreases in other categories.
Increases in operating expense categories include fringe benefits $11 .9 million, net expenses of joint venture $6.3
million, depreciation$ 4.1 million, and other wages of $0.7 million when compared to June 30, 2013. Increases in
fringe benefits were driven by a less favorable worker's compensation actuarial, increases in medical premiums, and
OPEB expense. Increases in net expenses of joint venture are primarily due to a significant decrease in state transit
assistance (STA) "lifeline" type funds over those received as ofJune 30, 2013. The increase in depreciation expense
is attributable to significant property plant and equipment additions during the period. Other wages increased
slightly due to restoration of pay cuts taken during the recession, modest pay increases, and a slight increase in FTE.
Decreases in operating expenses included Insurance, due to a favorable PLPD actuarial result million, and a
decrease in insurance premiums due to the move to a higher deductible.

·Alameda-Contra Costa Transit District
Operating Expenses- FY-2013/14 vs. 2012/13
140
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Non-Operating Expenses:
• In Fiscal Year 2013, non-operating expense was $1.9 million, compared to $1.3 million in Fiscal Year 2013.

Capital Program
The District received capital contributions of $51.5 million in Fiscal Year 2014 compared to $64.0 million in Fiscal Year
2013, a decrease of$12.5 million over Fiscal Year 2013. This decrease is not driven by the availability of funds, but
rather the funding requirements of existing projects within their normal project lifecycles. The capital contributions came
from the following sources, federal $35.0 miJlion, state $11.8 million and local $4.7 million. Naturally, on-going capital
investment is key to an asset intensive industry such as ours.
Some of the capital acquisitions during the period included:
•

Revenue Vehicle Replacement ($21.5 million)
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•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Bus Rapid Transit program ($12.7 million)
Maintenance Facilities, and buildings rehabilitation ($1.0 million)
Hydrogen Facilities ($3.0 million)
Photovoltaic Solar Panels ($2.2 million)
Information Services/Communications hardware ( $0.7 million)
Bus Route Improvement Program($ 2.3 million)
Farebox Replacement (8.0 million)

Additional information concerning the District's Capital Assets can be found in Note #6- Capital Assistance in the Notes

to the Financial Statements.

Debt
On February I, 2012 the District issued Refunding Certificates of Participation Series 2012 to take advantage oflower
interest rates. The proceeds from the issuance, $9.8 million, were used to refund the 2001 COPS. At June 30, 2014, the
outstanding principal component of the annual lease payment was $8.5 million. The District plans to repay the obligation
over six years, which will conclude by August 2018.
In December 2007, the District issued a $13.5 million COPS to fmance its new Finance Human Resources computer
system (FHR Project). The COPS are secured by specified capital assets. At June 30, 2014, the principal component of
the annual lease payment was $6.0 million and the District plans to repay the obligation over ten years, which will
conclude by August, 2017.
In February 2009 the District issued a $15.0 million COPS to help fund the July 2008 purchase of property located at
66th avenue in East Oaldand. At June 30, 2013, the principal component of the annual lease payment was $13.5 million.
The COPS are secured by specified capital assets and the District plans to repay the obligation over twenty-five years,
which will conclude by August 2034.
Additional information on the District's long-term debt can be found in note (8) to the basic financial statements

Subsequent Events
•

The District Implemented a New Day Pass Fare as of7/112014.

• The District has adopted the Federal Transit Administration's recommended fixed asset capitalization limit.
• The AC Transit Board of Directors ratified the Collective Bargaining agreement with ASFCME Local3916 on
7/23/2014; the term ofthe contract is 4/01/2014 to 3/31/2017.

Economic Factors
Beacon Economics reports, that the U.S. economy had a 4 percent growth rate in the second quarter. The U.S. economy
is continuing to move forward at the modest pace it has been on for the past two years. Over the next two quarters,
Beacon Economics is forecasting the U.S. economy to begin accelerating slowly, with growth coming in slightly over 3
percent. In 2015, things will improve further due to improving fundamentals this year- including expanding consumer
credit, personal income growth, wealth at sustainably high levels, and a housing market that will begin a second surge.
The Fed is expected to raise short-term rates late this year, and early next, but this will have only modest effects on long
term rates.
The East Bay labor market has continued to gain momentum in 2014. According to the California Employment
Development Department (EDD), payroll employment in the East Bay increased 2.5 percent from June 2013 to June
2014. Job growth in the East Bay has outpaced that of the state overall. Several sectors that supply a substantial number
of high-wage jobs in the East Bay experienced job growth after declining in 2013. The East Bay unemployment rate has
decreased 1.8 percentage points year-over-year, to 5.7 percent which is lower than that ofthe state overall.
The East Bay's relative housing affordability has spurred population growth in the area, as the region's population
increased by 1.28 percent, considerably above the statewide growth rate of 0.94 percent. New construction permits
issued in the East Bay for single-family homes increased 8.1 percent, to 2,628 year-over-year.
14
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So like the U.S. economy in general, the East Bay continues to move forward at a modest pace, doing slightly better than
the rest of the state in several important areas.
Requests for Information

This fmancial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers and creditors with a general overview of
the District's finances and to demonstrate accountability for the funds the District receives. If you have questions about
this report or need additional fmancial information, please contact the Alameda-Contra Costa Transit District, attn: Chief
Financial Officer, 1600 Franklin St. Oakland, California 94612.
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ALAMEDA-CONTRA COSTA TRANSIT DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF FUND NET POSITION
BUSINESS·TYPE ACTMTY • ENTERPRISE FUND
JUNE 30, 2014
(bt thousands)
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 3)
Restricted cash and cash equivalents (Note 3)
Receivables:
Federal and local grants:
Capital
Planning, operating and other (Note 7)
Property tax
Local sales tax
Other, principally trade receivables

$91,210
40,138

20,796
7,910
7,001
17,748
2,220

Total receivables~ net

55,675

Due from Pension Trust Fund (Note 5)
Inventories at average cost

3,920
13,881
3,695

Prepaid expenses

Total current assets

208,519

NONCURRENT ASSETS:
Restricted for certificates of participation:
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 3)
Capital assets (Note 4)
Nondepreciable
Depreciable, net

2,488
38,668
248,192

Total capital assets, net

286,860

Total noncurrent assets

289,348

Total assets

497,867

LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued salaries and wages
Current portion of accrued vacation and sick leave
Due to Pension Trust Fund (Note 5)
Unearned revenue
Other accrued liabilities

Accrued interest payable
Current portion of claims liabilities (Note 13)
Current portion of remediation obligations (Note 12)
Current portion of certificates of participation (Note 8)
Total cwrent liabilities
NONCURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accrued vacation and sick leave
OPEB obligation (Note I 0)
Claims liabilities (Note 13)
Remediation obligations (Note 12)
Certificates of participation (Note 8)

17,410
2,047
14,560
3,181
3,312
5,394
597
12,820
127
3,439
62,887
8,022
10,217
43,574
1,684
24,338

Total noncurrent liabilities

87,835
150,722

Total liabilities
NETPOSIDON
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for capital purchases (Note 11)
Restricted for debt service
Unrestricted

260,221
44,528
1,505
40,891
$347,145

TOTAL NET POSITION
See accompanying notes to the basic fmancial statements.
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ALAMEDA-CONTRA COSTA TRANSIT DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION
BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITY- ENTERPRISE FUND
FOR THEYEARENDEDJUN£30,2014
(In thousands)

OPERATING REVENUES:
Passenger fares
Contract services
Other

$52,508
11,929
4,165

Total operating revenues

68,602

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Operator wages
Other wages
Fringe benefits
Depreciation (Note 4)
Fuel and oil
Other material and supplies
Services
Insurance
Net expenses of joint venture
Other

58,529
47,106
128,755
39,495
17,359
11,345
26,510
7,115
8,515
7,863

Total operating expenses

352,592

Operating loss

(283,990)

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSE):
Operating assistance:
Property taxes
Local sales tax (Note 7)
Local funds (Note 7)
Federal (Note 7)
State (Note 7)
Loss on sale of capital assets
Interest income
Interest expense

105,807
60,280
70,234
8,746
16,853
(90)
674
(1,898)

Net nonoperating revenues

260,606

Loss before capital contributions

(23,384)

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS (Note 6)

51,517

CHANGE IN NET POSITION

28,133

NET POSITION, beginning of year

319,012

NET POSITION, end of year

$347,145

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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ALAMEDA-CONTRA COSTA TRANSIT DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITY -ENTERPRISE FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2014

(In thousands)
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Cash received from customers
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services
Cash payments to employees for services
Other operating receipts

$64,437
(70,676)
(234,304)
3,060

Net cash used in operating activities

(237,483)

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Operating assistance received

250,386

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities

250,386

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Acquisition and construction of capital assets
Capital contributions received
Proceeds from sale of capital assets
Principal paid on certificates of participation
Interest paid on certificates of participation

(94,936)
49,667
259
(3,025)
(1,876)

Net cash used in capital and related fmancing activities

(49,9II)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Investment income

636

Net cash provided by investing activities

636

CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(36,372)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of year

170,208

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of year

$133,836

SUMMARY OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
REPORTED ON THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION:

Unrestricted cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Restricted for certificates of participation

$91,210
40,138
2,488

Total cash and cash equival€mts reported on the Statement of Net Position
See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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$133,836

ALAMEDA-CONTRA COSTA TRANSIT DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITY- ENTERPRISE FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 20I4
(In thousands)
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING LOSS TO
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Operating loss
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss
to net cash used in operating activities:
Depreciation
Effect of changes in assets and liabilities:
Receivables
Inventories
Due from Pension Trust Fund
Prepaid expenses and OPEB asset
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued salaries and wages
Accrued vacation and sick leave
Unearned revenue
Due to Pension Trust Fund
Other accrueds
Long term liabilities

($283,990)

39,495
I,I38
(I,71 7)
(248)
(606)
4,897
4I9
{4I4)
(2,243)
(26I)
590
5,457

Net cash used in operating activities

($237,483)

NONCASH CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of capital assets on accounts payable

$

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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2,674

ALAMEDA-CONTRA COSTA TRANSIT DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF PLAN NET POSITION - PENSION TRUST FUND
DECEMBER31,2013
(In thousands)

ASSETS
Contributions receivable (Note 5)
Interest receivable on investments
Investments at fair value (Note 3):
Short-term investments
Equity securities
Equity funds
Fixed income funds
Global asset allocation funds
Real estate funds
Total investments for payment of accrued pension costs
Total assets

$3,253
80
5,818
64,481
207,166
199,287
49,023
22,446
548,221
551,554

LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED INFLOWS
Accrued expenses
Due to Enterprise Fund (Note 5)
Payable to brokers for unsettled transactions

161
3,836
64

Total liabilities

4,061

NET POSITION HELD IN TRUST FOR PENSION BENEFITS
See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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$547,493

ALAMEDA-CONTRA COSTA TRANSIT DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN PLAN NET POSITION- PENSION TRUST FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013
(In thousands)
ADDITIONS:
Employer contributions
Investment income:
Earnings on investments
Net appreciation in fair value of investments
Investment expenses
Net investment income

$39,151
7,416
65,729
(1,127)
72,018

Total additions

111,169

DEDUCTIONS:
Benefit payments
Administrative expenses

44,340
789
45,129

Total deductions

66,040

NET INCREASE
NET POSITION HELD IN TRUST FOR PENSION BENEFITS:
Beginning of year

481,453
$547,493

End of year
See accompanying notes to the basic fmancial statements.
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ALAMEDA-CONTRA COSTA TRANSIT DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014
(1) THE FINANCIAL REPORTING ENTITY

Organization- The Alameda-Contra Costa Transit District (the District) is a political subdivision of
the State of California established in 1956 and is subject to Transit District Law as codified in the
California Public Utilities Code.
Reporting Entity- The District follows the provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB) Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity, as amended. This statement sets forth
accountability of a government's elected officials to their constituents as the basic criteria for
inclusion of an organization in a governmental reporting entity. The governmental reporting entity
consists of the District (primary government) and organizations for which the District is fmancially
accountable. Financial accountability is defined as the appointment of a voting majority of the
component unit's board, and (i) either the District's ability to impose its will on the organization or
(ii) the potential for the organization to provide a fmancial benefit to, or impose a financial burden on
the District.
The basic financial statements include legally separate component units, which are so financially
intertwined with the District that they are, in substance, part of the District. The component units
discussed below are included in the District's reporting entity because of the significance of their
operational or fmancial relationships with the District.
For fmancial reporting purposes, the District's basic fmancial statements include all financial
activities that are controlled by or are dependent upon actions taken by the District's Board of
Directors. As such, the basic fmancial statements include the financial activities of the District's
Special Transit Service Districts (Special Districts) No. I and No. 2 and other areas in which the
District has contracted to provide transit service. Because these districts are not legally separate
entities, they are not considered component units under GASB Statement No. 14. Special District
No. I was the designation used from the creation of the District for its original territory, consisting of
the cities and unincorporated areas from roughly Richmond and San Pablo through Hayward.
Special District No. 2 was created by armexation agreements among the cities of Fremont and
Newark, the County of Alameda and the District and ratified by a subsequent special election in
November 1974 in Fremont and Newark. All property within the Special Districts is subject to taxes
that may be levied by the District.
In May 1988, the District created AC Transit Financing Corporation (the Corporation), a nonprofit
public benefit corporation incorporated in the State of California under the guidelines of the
Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation Law. Legally separate from the District, the Corporation is
blended with the primary government because its sole purpose is to provide fmancial assistance to
the District by financing, refmancing, acquiring, constructing, improving, leasing and selling
buildings, equipment, land, building improvements, and other public improvements.

The financial activities of the Alameda-Contra Costa Transit District Employees' Pension Plan (the
Plan) are fiduciary in the basic financial statements because the Plan exclusively serves the
employees of the District. The financial position and changes in financial position of the Plan are
reported on a calendar year basis.
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ALAMEDA-CONTRA COSTA TRANSIT DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014
(1) THE FINANCIAL REPORTING ENTITY (Continued)
The Plan is administered by the five-member Retirement Board made up of two representatives of the
general public selected by the District's Board, two District employees who are elected officials of
the Amalgamated Transit Union, Local 192 (ATU) and one District employee selected by the
District's Board of Directors from the employees who are not represented by ATU. The Retirement
Board has administrative and fiduciary responsibility over the Plan. The Retirement Board utilizes a
third-party banking institution as custodian over the Plan's assets.
Separate fmancial statements for the Corporation and the Plan may be obtained from the District
Controller.
(2) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis ofPresentation

The basic financial statements provide information about the District's enterprise fund and the
pension trust fund. Separate statements for each fund category - enterprise and fiduciary - are
presented. The basic financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are
recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of the related cash flows. On an
accrual basis, revenues from property taxes are recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are
levied; revenue from sales taxes are recognized in the fiscal year when the underlying exchange
occurs; revenue from grants is recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have
been satisfied; and revenue from investments is recognized when earned.
Enterprise Fund (proprietary fund) - The accounts of the District are organized on the basis of a
proprietary fund-type, specifically an enterprise fund. The activities of this fund are accounted for
with a set of self-balancing accounts that comprises the District's assets, deferred outflows,
liabilities, deferred inflows and net position, revenues and expenses. Enterprise funds account for
activities (i) that are financed with debt that is secured solely by a pledge of the net revenues from
fees and charges of the activity; or (ii) that are required by laws or regulations that the activity's cost
of providing services, including capital costs (such as depreciation or debt service), be recovered
with fees and charges, rather than with taxes or similar revenues; or (iii) with pricing policies that
establish fees and charges designed to recover its costs, including capital costs (such as depreciation
or debt service).

Enterprise funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods
in connection with an enterprise fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating
revenues of the District's Enterprise Fund are charges to passengers for services provided. Operating
expenses include the cost of services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets and
equipment. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating
revenues and expenses.
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ALAMEDA-CONTRA COSTA TRANSIT DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014
(2) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the District's policy to use
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

Pension Trust Fund- The Pension Trust Fund accounts for the accumulated resources to be used for
retirement annuity payments to all members of the Plan.

Cash and Cash Equivalents - For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the District considers all
highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less when purchased to be cash
equivalents. Any restricted cash and investments used to service debt principal and interest payments
of the District would not be considered cash equivalents.
Investments - The District applies the provisions of GASB Statement No. 31, Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Certain Investments and for External Investment Pools, which require
governmental entities to report certain investments at fair value in the statement of net position and
the statement of plan net position and recognize the corresponding change in fair value of
investments in the year in which the change occurred. In accordance with GASB Statement No. 31,
the District has reported its investments at fair value based on quoted market information obtained
from fiscal agents or other sources.

Restricted for Certificates of Participation - In connection with the 2007 Certificates of
Participation, the District was required to establish and maintain a reserve fund in the amount of
$1.35 million. Pursuant to a trust agreement by and between the Corporation, the District, and the
trustee, the restricted assets in the fund can only be used to service lease payments on the outstanding
certificates of participation.
In connection with the 2009A Certificates of Participation, the District was required to establish and
maintain a reserve fund in the amount of $1.138 million. Pursuant to a trust agreement by and
between the Corporation, the District, and the trustee, the restricted assets in the fund can only be
used to service lease payments on the outstanding certificates of participation.
The reserves are reported as non-current.

Pension Plan - The District's noncontributory pension plan provides retirement benefits for all
qualifying union and non-union employees. The District's annual contribution to fund the Plan is
actuarially determined based on a percentage of gross payroll, which includes the normal cost of the
Plan plus amortization of prior service costs over a period of not more than thirty years. Cash and
investments in the Plan are restricted by law to provide for the future payment of pension benefits
and related expenses.

Inventories - Inventories consist primarily of bus replacement parts and fuel and are stated at
average cost. Inventory usages are charged to expense, on a weighted-average basis, at the time that
individual items are withdrawn from inventory.
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ALAMEDA-CONTRA COSTA TRANSIT DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2014
(2) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Capital Assets- Capital assets are stated at cost and are depreciated using the straight-line method
over the estimated useful lives of the assets, as follows:
Building, structures and other improvements
Revenue equipment
Service vehicles and other equipment
Engines and transmissions
Revenue vehicles (Mini Vans)

30 years
12 years
3 to 10 years
5 years
7 years

The District's policy is to capitalize all property and equipment with a cost greater than $1,000 and a
useful life of more than one year.

Operating Assistance - Grants are accounted for as nonoperating revenue as soon as all eligibility
requirements have been met.
Contract Services - The Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) allocates a portion of the
San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District's (BART) State Transportation Assistance funds to
the District for allowing BART passengers to ride District buses at a discounted rate when they
provide a BART transfer. Allocations from MTC totaled $6.32 million for the year ended June 30,
2014 and are recorded as contract services. See Note 14 for related party disclosures on the
Consortium.

Property Taxes, Collection and Maximum Rates - The State of California (State) Constitution
Article Xlli A provides that the maximum basic property tax rate on any given property may not
exceed l% of its assessed value unless an additional amount for general obligation debt has been
approved by voters. Assessed value is calculated at 100% of market value as defined by Article XIII
A and may be increased by no more than 2% per year unless the property is sold, transferred or
improved. The State Legislature has determined the method of distribution of receipts of the tax levy
among the counties, cities, school districts and other districts, including the District.
Alameda and Contra Costa counties assess properties, bill for, collect and distribute property taxes.
Property taxes are recorded as nonoperating revenue (including secured delinquent property taxes)
net of estimated uncollectible amounts, in the fiscal year of levy.
Assessed values are determined annually by the Assessor's Offices of Alameda and Contra Costa
counties on January l, and become a lien on the real properties at January 1. The levy date for
secured and unsecured properties is July 1 of each year. Secured taxes are due November l and
February l and are delinquent if not paid by December 10 and April 10, respectively. Unsecured
property tax is due on July 1 and becomes delinquent after August 31.
The District accrues delinquent property taxes from Contra Costa County. The cumulative amount of
delinquent taxes uncollected for the current and prior years has been recorded as a receivable. The
District, through the County of Alameda (County), is under the Teeter plan whereby, delinquent
taxes are received by the District from the County's own funds in the event that delinquent taxes are
not received by a certain due date. In return, the District forgoes the penalties and interests that
would accrue on these delinquent property taxes.
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ALAMEDA-CONTRA COSTA TRANSIT DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014
(2) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
On November 30, 2004, the voters approved Measure BB, which superseded the Measure AA parcel
tax. Measure BB increased the amount of annual parcel tax to $48 per year and the term of the tax to
10 years from the date of implementation. The tax became effective on July 1, 2005 and was to
terminate on June 30, 2015. However, on November 4, 2008, the voters approved Measure VV,
which supersedes the Measure BB parcel tax. Measure VV became effective July 1, 2009 and
increased the annual parcel tax to $96 per parcel. Measure VV is effective through June 30, 2019.
The revenue derived from this measure is to be used to sustain public transportation services
provided by the District in Special District No. 1. The District received approximately $29.2 million
in Measure VV taxes during the year ended June 30, 2014.

Compensated Absences -The personnel policies of the District generally allow employees to accrue
up to 240 hours of vacation and 140 days of sick leave. Unused accrued vacation is paid to the
employee upon termination from District employment. Unused accrued, vested sick leave is paid,
upon retirement, to those employees with ten or more years of District service.
Capital Contributions- The District receives grants from the Federal Transit Administration (FTA)
and state and local transportation funds for the acquisition of buses and other equipment and
improvements. Capital contributions are recorded as revenues after net nonoperating revenues and
the cost of the related assets is included in capital assets.

Net position - The financial statements utilize a net position presentation.

Net position are

categorized as investment in capital assets, restricted and unrestricted.
•

Net investment in capital assets - This category groups all capital assets into one component
of net position. Accumulated depreciation and the outstanding balances of debt that are
attributable to the acquisition, construction or improvement of these assets reduce the
balance in this category.

•

Restricted net position - This category represents restrictions on net position externally
imposed by creditors or imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling
legislation. At June 30, 2014, the District has restricted net position in the amount of $1.5
million related to the 2007 Certificates of Participation (COPS) and $44.5 million for the
future acquisition of buses (See Note 11 ). The net position restricted for debt service are
maintained in a reserve fund to service lease payments on the outstanding 2007 COPS.

•

Unrestricted net position -This category represents net position of the District, not restricted
for any projects or other purposes.

Use of Estimates - Management has made estimates and assumptions relating to the reporting of
assets and liabilities and revenues and expenses to prepare the basic financial statements in
con(ormity with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.
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ALAMEDA-CONTRA COSTA TRANSIT DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2014
(3) CASH AND INVESTMENTS

Investment policy - The District's investment policy, which is more restrictive than required by the
California Government Code, stipulates the type, maturity limit, and diversification of securities held
by the District. The objectives of the policy, in order of priority, are compliance with applicable
laws, preservation of capital, liquidity to meet required cash demands and maximization of income.
The District's investment policy does not permit investments in medium term notes, municipal
securities or reverse repurchase agreements, which are permitted by the California Government
Code. In accordance with the District's investment policy, the District may invest in the following
types of investments, subject to certain restrictions, such as rating quality or maximum percentages
of the portfolio:
(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)
(e)
(f)

Repurchase agreements
Securities of U.S. government and its agencies
California Local Agency Investment Fund
Negotiable certificates of deposit
Commercial paper
Bankers acceptances

The Plan's investments are invested pursuant to investment policy guidelines established by the
Retirement Board. The long-term asset allocation of the investment portfolio is to have 33% of the
portfolio invested in domestic equities, 20% in international equities, 37% in domestic fixed income
securities, and I 0% in three global asset allocation funds. The portfolio is managed by investment
managers hired by the Board. The Board utilizes both active and passive management in the
domestic equity portfolio. The Board has chosen to manage the investment risks described by
Government Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 40 by requiring investment managers to
abide by certain guidelines that are tailored to the portfolio that the manager manages. These
guidelines specify the amount of credit, interest, and foreign currency risk that a manager may take
and the performance objective of the portfolio.
The allocation to global asset allocation Funds allow the investment ma':Iagers to adjust the portfolio
managed based on which asset classes (primarily stocks and bonds) they consider desirable. The
specific asset allocation decisions are made by the investment managers within their investment
policy limits. Global asset allocation results in the placement of the asset allocation decision on the
investment manager, rather than the Retirement Board.
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ALAMEDA-CONTRA COSTA TRANSIT DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014
(3) CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

Presentation - At June 30, 2014 (December 31, 2013 for the Plan), the District's cash and
investments consisted of the following (in thousands):
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments

$133,836
548,221

Total

$682,057

Reported in the Enterprise Fund as:
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash and cash equivalent

$91,210
42,626

Reported in the Pension Trust Fund as:
Investments restricted for payment of accrued
pension costs (at December 31, 2013)

548,221
$682,057

Total
Fund Investments - Specific Risks

As of June 30, 2014, the District had the following investments and maturities (amounts are in
thousands):
Investment
Maturities
Standard &
Poor's Rating Less Than 1 Year
Investment Type
Fair Value
Not rated
Bank Repurchase Agreements
$25,000
$25,000
Money Market Mutual Funds
88,093
88,093
AAAm
$113,093
$113,093
Total

Interest Rate Risk- The District has limited exposure to interest rate risk due to its liquidity needs to
meet cash flow demand requirements. All of its investments have a remaining maturity at date of
purchase of three months or less. None of the District's investments are highly sensitive to interest
rate changes.

Credit Risk- The District's credit rating risk is governed by the California Government Code 53601
which limits investments in money market mutual funds to the highest ranking attained by the rating
agency which is Aaam. The District had investments in U.S. government agencies, bank repurchase
agreements (underlying of U.S. Treasury securities) and in money market mutual funds. There are
no credit limits on the securities of U.S. Treasury since these investments are backed by the full faith
and credit of the United States government.
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ALAMEDA-CONTRA COSTA TRANSIT DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014
(3) CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

Concentration of Credit Risk- The District manages this risk by requiring that no more than 20% of
its total investment portfolio (with the exception of securities of the U.S. Treasury or U.S.
government agencies) be invested in a single security type or with a single financial institution.
Disclosure requirements state that any investments in a single security type or held with a single
financial institution that are greater than 5% of the District's investments must be disclosed, except
for investments in external pools and mutual funds. In fiscal year 2014, the District had $25 million
of its investments invested in repurchase agreements.
Custodial Credit Risk- Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that in the event of a bank failure,
the District's deposits may not be returned to it. The California Government Code requires
California banks and savings and loan associations to secure governmental deposits by pledging
government securities as collateral. The market value of pledged securities must equal at least 110%
of the District's deposits. California law also allows financial institutions to secure governmental
deposits by pledging first trust deed mortgage notes having a value of 150% of the District's total
deposits. Such collateral is considered to be held in the District's name.
As of June 30, 2014, the book value of the City's cash with Local Banks was $1,757 thousand. As of
June 30, 2014, $7 thousand of the City's bank balance was exposed to custodial credit risk, because it
was uncollateralized beyond the FDIC insurance of $250 thousand.
Pension Trust Fund- Specific Risks

Interest Rate Risk - For the Plan, interest rate risk is managed through the duration of its fixed
income securities. Bond prices are highly sensitive to the movement of interest rates. A decline in
interest rates will tend to increase bond prices while an increase in rates will depress prices.
Duration is a measure of interest rate risk with a higher duration signifYing greater price volatility in
response to a change in interest rates.
At December 30, 2013, the Plan did not have any direct investment in fixed income securities.

Credit Risk - For the Plan, fixed income assets are invested in two pooled invespnent vehicles and
with an outside money manager. As of December 31, 2013, $5.8 million was invested in a short term
pooled investment fund managed by State Street Corporation. This fund is not rated.
Concentration of Credit Risk- The Plan also has investments that represent 5% or more of Plan net
position as of December 31, 2013. The Plan had no investments in a single issuer that equaled or
exceeded 5% of Plan net position.
Foreign Currency Risk- Foreign currency risk is the risk that the changes in foreign exchange rates
will affect the fair value of an investment denominated in a foreign currency. The Plan has, or could
have, exposure to foreign currencies through its investment in several commingled investments. As
of December 31,2013, investments in international funds totaled $103.1 million.
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Following is a summary of capital assets at June 30, 2014 (in thousands):

Non-depreciable capital assets:
Land
Work in progress

June 301 2013

Additions

$27,665
4 729
32 394

$365
94 571
94 936

Retirements

Transfers

June 301 2014

($88,662)
(88,662)

$28,030
10 638
38 668

65,418
3,836
19 408
88,662

326,270
162,642
227,053
715,965

Total
Depreciable capital assets
Revenue equipment
Service vehicles and other equipment
Buildings, structure and improvements
Total
Less accumulated depreciation
Revenue equipment
Service vehicles and other equipment
Buildings, structure and improvements

(169,639)
(139,548)
(135,725)

(22,124)
(8,478)
(8,893)

16,387
247

(175,376)
(147,779)
(144,618)

Total

(444,912)

(39,495)

16,634

(467,773)

199 374

(39,495)

(349)

$231,768

$55,441

($349)

Depreciable capital assets, net of
accumulated depreciation
Capital assets, net of
accumulated depreciation

277,588
159,053
207 645
644,286

($16,736)
(247)
(16,983)

88,662

248,192
$286,860

(5) INTERFUND RECEIVABLES/PAYABLES
The Enterprise Fund in the accompanying basic financial statements is reported as of June 30, 2014
and the Pension Trust Fund is reported as of December 31, 2013; therefore, interfund payables and
receivables do not equal. Interfund receivables and payables arise due to the timing of
reimbursements from the Pension Trust Fund for administration costs and retiree benefits payments
made by the District and payments to the Pension Trust Fund for contributions based on covered
payroll.
December 3 1, 2014
(in thousands)
Interfund receivable
Enterprise fund

$3,253

December 31, 2013
(in thousands)
Interfund receivable
Enterprise fund
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(6) CAPITALASSISTANCE
The District has 18 grant contracts in process with the FTA that provide federal funds for the
acquisition of buses, other equipment and improvements. Under the terms of the grants, proceeds
from equipment sold or retired are refundable to the federal government in proportion to the original
federal capital grant funds used in the purchase. The District has also received allocations of funds
generated from net bridge toll revenues of the San Francisco-Oakland Bay Bridge and from
PTMISEA grants, see Note II (State grants). These funds are received under provisions of the
California Streets and Highways Code and are allocated based on claims approved by the MTC.
These grants are summarized for the year ended June 30, 2014 as follows (in thousands):
Federal grants
State grants

$34,992
16,525
$51,517

(7) OPERATINGASSISTANCE
State and Local Operating Assistance - The Transportation Development Act (TDA) creates in each
local jurisdiction a Local Transportation Fund that is funded by a Y. cent from the retail sales tax
collected statewide. The State Board of Equalization returns these funds to the local jurisdiction
according to the amount of sales taxes collected in that jurisdiction. TDA funds are allocated to the
District from Alameda and Contra Costa counties to meet, in part, the District's operating
requirements. The allocation is based on population within the District.

Supplementary service revenues (AB 2972) are formula allocated funds that are passed to the District
through the Oakland Unified School District (OUSD) for OUSD's home to school service program.
Funds are allocated for this program based on the cost of running the OUSD program as a percentage
of total school districts statewide applying for these funds.
Welfare to work grant funding is provided by the State to match the federal welfare to work program
that is used to fund the District's Job Access and Reverse Commute program. The welfare to work
grant is funded based on the population within a local area that are below the poverty level and
comprise CalWORKS recipients. The Job Access and Reverse Commute program provides
transportation to key low-income neighborhoods, homeless centers and targeted work centers
particularly during evening, night and weekend hours.
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Below is a summary of state and local operating assistance for the year ended June 30, 2014 (in
thousands):
Local funds:
Transportation Development Act
$57,959
Regional Measure 2
12,275
$70,234
State operating assistance:
Operating Revenues
Supplementary Service/Welfare to Work
Pass Thru

$10,603
2,225
4,025
$16,853

Local Sales Tax- The local sales tax assistance (AB II 07) is derived from the one-half percent retail
tax imposed on the three BART counties (Alameda, Contra Costa and San Francisco). Of the total
amount collected, 75% is a direct BART subsidy with the District and the San Francisco Municipal
Railway System (MUNI) sharing the remaining 25% equally.

In 1987, the District began receiving local sales tax revenue under Measure B. Approved by the
voters of Alameda County, Measure B provides for the collection and distribution by the Alameda
County Transportation Authority of a one-half percent transactions and use tax. The District is
authorized to receive 11.617% of the annual tax collected under the condition that the money be used
for service exclusively in Alameda County.
In 2009, the District began receiving local sales tax revenue under Measure J, which is an extension
of existing Measure C one-half percent sales tax for financing of transportation projects in Contra
Costa County. As a transit operator in Contra Costa County, the District is eligible to submit project
proposals to the Contra Costa Transportation Authority (CCTA) for funding under Measure J.
Local sales tax assistance for the year ended June 30, 2014, is summarized below (in thousands):
AB1107
MeasureB
Measure J

$36,912
19,428
3,940
$60,280

Section 5307 Funding Sources- All federal funding sources are distributed by FTA after approval
by the MTC. Federal funding sources for the year ended June 30, 2014 are summarized below (in
thousands):
Job Access Reverse Commute
$825
7,921
Americans with Disabilities program -ADA set aside
1,433
Americans with Disabilities Act paratransit program -lease
Less amount reported within net expenses of joint venture
(1,433)
$8,746
At June 30, 2014, Federal Section 5307 funds totaling $7,910 thousand were recorded as a
receivable.
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(8) LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

The following is a summary of changes in the District's long-term liabilities for the year ended June
30, 2014 (in thousands):
Original
Issue

Retirements

Balance
June 30,2014

$13,500

$7,320
112

($1,330)
(27)

$5,990
85

15,000

13,925
(386)

(380)
18

9,840

9,840

(1,315)

8,525

1,645

30,811

($3,034)

27,777

$3,439

Amount

2007 Certificates of Participation
4o/~4.15o/~ due 08/0112017
Less unamortized premium
2009A Certificates of Participation
3o/~6.125o/~ due 08/0112034
Less unamortized discount
2012 Refunding Certificates of Participation
4o/~4.75o/~ due 08/01/2018

ArnoWit

Balance
June 30, 2013

Total Long-Term Debt
Less:
Amowtt due within one year

(3,034)
$27,777

Total Long·Tenn Debt. net

13,545
(368)

due within
one xear

$1,395
27
390
(18)

(3,439)
$24,338

On December 19,2007, proceeds from the issuance of$13.5 million of Certificates of Participation,
Series 2007 (2007 COPS) were used to acquire and install a fmancial and human resources/payroll
software system, including wiring and implementation of support services during the first year
following completion. Interest ou the 2007 COPS is payable semi-annually on February 1 and
August 1 of each year through the year 2017.
On February 1, 2009, proceeds from the issuance of $15 million of Certificates of Participation
Series 2009A (2009A COPS) were used to acquire the land at 66"' Avenue and all existing facilities
and improvements. Interest on the 2009A COPS is payable semiannually on February 1 and August
1 of each year through the year 2034.
On February l, 2012, the District issued Refunding Certificates of Participation Series 2012 (2012
COPS). The proceeds from the issuance of the $9.84 million were used to refund and retire the 2001
COPS. Interest on the 2012 COPS is payable semi-annually on February 1 and August 1 of each year
through the year 2018.
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The District's debt service requirements to maturity for each of the next 5 fiscal years and thereafter
are summarized as follows (in thousands):
For The Year
Ending June 30
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020-2024
2025-2029
2030-2034
2035
Total
Unamortized premium
and discount
Total payment

Principal
$3,430
3,530
3,645
3,770
2,220
2,560
3,340
4,495
1,070
28,060

Interest
$1,140
1,027
910
786
696
3,047
2,237
1,048
35
$10,926

Total
$4,570
4,557
4,555
4,556
2,916
5,607
5,577
5,543
1,105
$38,986

(283)
$27,777

Debt Limit
Board policy on debt limitation (as defined by Ordinance No. 3773) states that "total annual debt
service expenses shall not exceed ten percent of operating revenue (including subsidies) provided
that in no event shall such indebtedness exceed twenty percent of the assessed value of all real and
personal property within the District." The District's legal annual debt service limit as June 30,
2014, is approximately $33 million.

Arbitrage
The Tax Reform Act of 1986 instituted certain arbitrage restrictions with respect to the issuance of
tax-exempt bonds after August 31, 1986. Arbitrage regulations deal with the investment of all taxexempt bond proceeds at an interest yield greater than the interest yield paid to bondholders.
Generally, all interest paid to bondholders can be retroactively rendered taxable if applicable rebates
are not reported and paid to the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) at least every five years.
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Plan Description - The Plan is a noncontributory single-employer defmed benefit pension plan,
which provides retirement benefits for all qualifying union and non-union employees.
Administration of the Plan is performed by the Plan's management staff and overseen by the Plan's
Retirement Board.
The District makes contributions, based upon the Plan's actuarial calculation each fiscal year. The
Plan's members are members of the Amalgamated Transit Union (ATU), the American Federation of
State, County and Municipal Employees (AFSCME), the International Brotherhood of Electrical
Workers (IBEW) and unrepresented employees. Each union vesting period is based upon its
individual collective bargaining entity, which is 5 years for all employees other than ATU
employees, who have an 8-year vesting requirement.

Actuarial methods and assumptions - The actuary used the following assumptions and methods in
calculating the annual required contribution and the funded status:
Valuation date
Actuarial cost method
Amortization method
Remaining amortization period
Asset valuation method

Actuarial assumptions:
Investment rate of return*
Projected salary increases*
*Includes inflations at
Cost ofliving adjustments

January I, 2013
Entry Age Normal
Level percentage open
15 years (decreasing one year annually, 12 year minimum)
50% of2008 investment loss is amortized over 30 years
Market value less unrecognized investment gains or losses
during the prior four years, phased in at 20% per year, but
required to be within 20% of market value.
7.375%
3.5%- 7.0% for ATUIIBEW participants
3.5% for AFSCME and non-represented participants
3.0%
None

Actuarial valuations of an on-going plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and
assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Amounts determined
regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required contribution of the District are subject
to continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are
made about the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary
information following the notes to the fmancial statements, presents multi-year trend information
about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the
actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits.

Basis of Accounting - Contributions are recognized as revenues in the period in which employee
services are performed. Benefits and refunds of prior contributions are recognized when due and
payable in accordance with the terms of the Plan. Investments are stated at fair value. Quoted
market values are used to value investments. Investment gains and losses are based on average cost.
Purchases and sales of securities are recorded on the trade date.
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Funding Policy - The District's contributions to the Plan normally are made in accordance with
actuarially determined requirements. The Plan's funding policy provides for actuarially determined
periodic contributions so that sufficient assets will be available to pay benefits when they are due.
Significant actuarial assumptions used to compute the actuarially determined contribution
requirement are the same as those used to compute the District's actuarial accrued liability.
The District's annual required contribution in the current year was $38,408 thousand representing
100% of projected actuarial payroll.
The three-year trend information for the Plan is as follows (dollars in thousands):

Fiscal
Year
Ended
June 30, 2012
June 30,2013
June30,2014

Annual
Pension
Cost(APC}

Percentage
ofAPC
Contributed

$38,624
39,013
39,859

100%
100%
100%

Net
Pension
Obligation
$

Funded Status and Funding Progress - The unfunded actuarial liability is being amortized as a
level percentage of expected payroll on an open basis over twenty-one years. As of January 1, 2013,
the most recent actuarial valuation date, the funded status of the plan was as follows (dollars in
thousands):

Actuarial accrued liability (AAL)
Actuarial value of plan assets
Unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL)

$753,239
480,242
$272,997

Funded ratio (actuarial value of plan assets/AAL)
Annual covered payroll (active plan members)
UAAL as a percentage of annual covered payroll

64%
$130,592
209%

A schedule of funding progress that shows a trend analysis of funding progress can be found in the
required supplementary information. The Plan issues stand-alone financial statements and copies of
these statements can be obtained from the AC Transit Retirement Departroent, 1600 Franklin Street,
Oakland, CA 94621.
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ATU Locall92 Benefit Trust
Plan Description
The ATU Local 192 Benefits Trust (the Trust) administers a single-employer defined benefit post
employment plan to assist eligible retirees with their medical costs. The Trust consists of three
programs that provide other post employment benefits: the A TU Retiree Health & Welfare Program,
the AFSCME Retiree Medical Program and the IBEW Retiree Medical Program. The Trust provides
medical benefits to all vested retirees at least 55 years old by paying a portion of the medical
insurance premiums or reimbursement of eligible medical expenses not to exceed the maximum
negotiated rates. Rates are negotiated between the District and the respective bargaining units. The
Trust's board of trustees has historically adopted rates based on the premiums offered by
participating providers.
Funding Policy
The District is required to make contributions to the Trust based on the number of hours worked by
active union employees. The establishment and modification of the memorandums of understanding
between the District and the respective bargaining units creates the authority under which the District
is obligated to make its contributions. For fiscal year 2014, the required contribution rates were as
follows:
Bargaining Unit

Contribution Rate

ATULocall92
AFSCME
IBEW

$1.30 per hour per employee
No contribution
$1.04 per hour per employee

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation
The District's annual other post employment benefit (OPEB) cost is equal to the annual required
contribution {ARC), an amount actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB
Statement No. 45. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is
projected to cover the normal cost of each year and unfunded actuarial liabilities amortized over
thirty years.
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The following table shows the components of the District's annual OPEB cost for the year, the
amount contributed to the plan, and changes in the District's net OPEB asset to the plan (in
thousands):
$5,165
Annual required contribution
Interest on net OPEB obligation
(184)
Adjustment to annual required contribution ----::-"'-,20:-:80PEB cost
5,189
Contributions made
(2, 795)
Increase in net OPEB obligation
2,394
Net OPEB obligation- beginning of year
4,619
Net OPEB obligation- end of year
$7,013
The District's annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and
the net OPEB asset for the current year is as follows (in thousands):

Fiscal
Year
Ended
June 30, 2012
June 30, 2013
June 30, 2014

Percentage of
Annua!OPEB
Cost Contributed
39.9%
36.0%
53.9%

Annual
OPEB Cost
$4,561
5,023
5,189

NetOPEB
Obli~:~ation

$1,404
4,619
7,013

Funded Status and Funding Progress
The unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being amortized as a level dollar of expected payroll on an
open basis over thirty years, beginning July I, 2007. As of June 30, 2014, the funded status of the
plan was as follows (in thousands):

Actuarial accrued liability (AAL)
Actuarial value of plan assets
Unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL)

$88,291
3,868
$84,423

Funded ratio (actuarial value of plan assets/AAL)
4.4%
Annual covered payroll (active plan members)
$105,636
UAAL as a percentage of annual covered payroll
79.9%
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Actuarial Methods and Assumptions
Actuarial valuations of an on-going plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and
assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include
assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined
regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required contribution of the District are subject
to continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are
made about the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary
information following the notes to the fmancial statements, presents multi-year trend information
about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the
actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits.

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan as
understood by the District and plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time
of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the District and plan
members to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are
designed to reduce short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of
assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations.
In the actuarial valuation as of January I, 2012, the actuarial cost method used was the projected unit
credit method. This method allocates the present value of benefits for each individual attributable to
service to date, using future compensation projected to retirement. The amortization method used
was the level dollar open method; the remaining amortization period is 30 years. The actuary uses
market value to determine the actuarial value of the plan assets.
The actuarial assumptions include an investment rate of 5%, an inflation rate of 3.5%, a healthcare
cost trend rate of 10% for fiscal year grading down 1.0% each year to 5.0% for fiscal year 2018 and
beyond.
The Trust issues stand-alone financial statements and copies of these statements can be obtained
from the District Controller, 1600 Franklin Street, Oakland, CA 94621.
Retiree Benefits Non-Trust Plan
Plan Description
The District administers a single-employer defined benefit post employment plan called the Retiree
Benefits Non-Trust Plan (the OPEB Plan) to assist eligible retirees with their medical costs. The
OPEB Plan provides medical, dental, vision and life insurance benefits to all vested retirees and their
spouses at least 55 years old by paying the current participating providers' insurance premiums. The
medical insurance benefit is also available for a retiree's dependent, if applicable. The OPEB Plan
differs from the Trust in that it provides Trust plan members supplemental healthcare benefits in
addition to medical benefits, as well as providing medical benefits to District employees who are
unrepresented. Insurance premium rates are negotiated between the District and the respective
bargaining units. The District has historically adopted rates based on the premiums offered by
participating providers. The OPEB Plan does not issue stand-alone financial statements.
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Funding Policy
The District has historically funded the OPEB Plan on a pay-as-you-go basis. There is currently no
requirement for either the District or the OPEB Plan members to make contributions to the OPEB
Plan.
Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation
The District's annual other post employment benefit (OPEB) cost is equal to the annual required
contribution (ARC), an amount actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB
Statement No. 45. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is
projected to cover the normal cost of each year and unfunded actuarial liabilities amortized over
thirty years.
The following table shows the components of the District's annual OPEB cost for the year, the
amount contributed to the plan, and changes in the District's net OPEB obligation to the plan (in
thousands):
Annual required contribution
$3,492
Interest on net OPEB obligation
102
Adjustment to annual required contribution ---..,."(1:..:4..::0L)
OPEB cost
3,454
Contribution made
(2,008)
Increase in net OPEB obligation
1,446
Net OPEB obligation- beginning of year
1,758
Net OPEB obligation- end of year
$3,204
The District's annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and
the net OPEB obligation for the current and prior years are as follows (in thousands):

Fiscal Year
Ended
June 30, 2012
June 30, 2013
June 30, 2014

Percentage of
Annua!OPEB
Cost Contributed
102.5%
74.7%
58.1%

Annual
OPEBCost
$1,551
2,506
3,454
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Funded Status and Funding Progress
The unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being amortized as a level dollar of expected payroll on an
open basis over thirty years, beginning July 1, 2007. As of June 30, 2014, the funded status of the
plan was as follows (in thousands):
Actuarial accrued liability (AAL)
Actuarial value of plan assets
Unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL)
Funded ratio (actuarial value of plan assets/AAL)
Annual covered payroll (active plan members)
UAAL as a percentage of annual covered payroll

$41,193
$41,193
0%
$108,473
38.0%

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions
Actuarial valuations of an on-going plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and
assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include
assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined
regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required contribution of the District are subject
to continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are
made about the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary
information following the notes to the financial statements, presents multi-year trend information
about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the
actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits.
Projections of benefits for fmancial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan as
understood by the District and plan members) and include the ty(Jes of benefits provided at the time
of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the District and plan
members to that point. The actuarial methods and assmnptions used include techniques that are
designed to reduce short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of
assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations.
In the actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2014, the actuarial cost method used was the projected unit
credit method. This method allocates the present value of benefits for each individual attributable to
service to date, using future compensation projected to retirement. The amortization method used
was the level dollar open method; the remaining amortization period is 30 years. The actuarial
assumptions include an investment rate of 4.5%, an inflation rate of 3 .2%, a healthcare cost trend rate
of 10% for fiscal year 2014 grading down 0.5% each year to 8.0% for fiscal year 2017 and beyond,
and a dental and vision cost rate of3.0%.
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PTMISEA Grants
The Highway Safety, Traffic Reduction, Air Quality, and Port Security Bond Act of 2006, approved
by the voters as Proposition lB on November 7, 2006, includes a program of funding in the amount
of $4 billion to be deposited in the Public Transportation Modernization, Improvement, and Service
Enhancement Account (PTMISEA). Of this amount, $3.6 billion in the PTMISEA is available to
project sponsors in California for allocation to eligible public transportation projects.
During fiscal year 2010, the District submitted a Corrective Action Plan requesting additional
PTMISEA grant funding on top of its fiscal year 2009 allocation to purchase buses.
The California Department of Transportation (Cal Trans) determined that the District was eligible to
receive an additional allocation totaling $8.826 million (2009 allocation). The funds were sent to the
District prior to its purchase of the buses but are committed to funding future bus purchases. The
funds must be encumbered within three years and expended within three years of being encumbered.
In fiscal year 2014, the District received no PTMISEA funds but expended $29,951 thousand for the
purchases of buses and Transit Access Improvement projects.
The following table shows the changes in activity related to the PTMISEA grant funds during the
fiscal year as well as the remaining commitment as of June 30, 2014 (in thousands):

Total Allocations
as of
June 30, 2013
$87,051

Cumulative
Expenses
Total Allocations
Incurred
received in
through
FY 2014
June 30, 2014
$0
$42,567
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at
June 30,2014
$44,528

ALAMEDA-CONTRA COSTA TRANSIT DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014
(12) CONTINGENCIES

Lease and Use Agreement for the Temporary Terminal and Transit Center
In September 2008, the District approved a Lease and Use Agreement for the Temporary Terminal
and the new Transit Center with the Transbay Joint Powers Authority (the TJPA). The agreement
sets forth the parties' rights and obligations up to the year 2050 with respect to (a) the District's bus
operations in the Temporary Terminal and the new Transit Center; (b) the District's contribution to
offset annual operating costs for the Temporary Terminal and Transit Center; and (c) the District's
capital contributions to build the Transit Center in the sum of $57 million (in 2011 dollars). The
District's $57 million contribution will be funded through a combination of payments from various
grant funded sources and a proposed passenger facilities charge.

Projected contributions are scheduled as follow (in thousands):
Pa~ents

2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020-2024
2025-2029
2030-2034

$7,758
4,626
987
960
934
5,488
6,037
5,348

Claims and Potential Litigation
There are claims and litigation pending, which are considered normal to the District's operation of
the transit system. The District maintains insurance coverage for such incidents, as summarized in
Note 13, and provisions have been made in the financial statements for estimated losses under the
self-insurance retention limits of insurance policies.

Pollution Remediation
The District has an estimated $1.811 million in liabilities for the monitoring and potential clean-up
costs for pollution remediation obligations. The District has several locations where soil and
groundwater has been contaminated.
The Alameda County Health Care Services Agency (ACHCS) and the Alameda County Water
District (ACWD) issued directives to the District to perform groundwater monitoring and require
conceptual models and feasibility studies to address possible mitigation measures. The estimated
liabilities were measured at current value using the expected cash flow technique for each obligating
event based on current and estimated costs. Changes to estimated liabilities will be made when new
information, such as changes in remediation plans, technology and legal or regulatory requirements,
becomes available.
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ALAMEDA-CONTRA COSTA TRANSIT DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014
(13) RISK MANAGEMENT

As of June 30, 2014 the District has the following coverages:
Type of Coverage

Deductible

Coverage Limit

General Liability

$1,000,000

$2,000,000 per occurrence with
excess up to $55,000,000

Workers' Compensation

1,000,000

Statutory Limit

100,000

$100,000,000

Property, B&M, Auto Physical Damage

The District accrues a liability for claims and litigation (including a reserve for claims incurred but
not reported) based on an actuarial study. The liability includes allocated and unallocated claims
adjustment expenses and incremental claim expense. In addition, the District is partially self-insured
for health and dental exposure. Management has evaluated the potential liability and recorded an
accrual, which includes an amount for incurred but not reported claims.
During the year ended June 30, 2014, the actuarial estimates based on the 75ili percentile discounted
at 3% to 3.5% to estimate its liability for worker's compensation and the public liability claims were
$45.4 million and $11.0 million, respectively.
Changes in the reported liability resulted from the following (in thousands):
Workers'
Compensation
Liabili~

Balance at June 30, 2012
Claims and changes in estimates
Claim Payments
Balance at June 30, 2013
Claims and changes in estimates
Claim Payments
Balance at June 30, 2014

$44,475
11,571
{12,377)
43,669
12,888
(11,159)
$45,398

Public
Liability
$9,748
8,998
(7,051)
11,695
3,691
(4,390)
$10,996

Health and
Dental
Liability
$117
4,110
(4,110)
117
4,347
(4,464)

Total
$54,340
24,679
(23,538)
55,481
20,926
(20,013)
$56,394

The classification of the current and long-term portion of the self-insurance liabilities for the year
ended June 30, 2014 are summarized as follows (in thousands):

Workers' compensation liability
Public liability

Current
$7,251
5,569

Long-term
$38,147
5,427

Total
$45,398
10,996

$12,820

$43,574

$56,394
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ALAMEDA-CONTRA COSTA TRANSIT DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2014
(14) JOINT VENTURE
In 1994, the District and BART executed an agreement establishing the East Bay Paratransit
Consortium. The District supports the project primarily through its own operating funds, with some
financial assistance from Alameda County Measure B funds. The purpose of the Consortium is to
provide Americans with Disabilities complementary paratransit services in Alameda and western
Contra Costa counties. The area served encompasses the AC Transit/BART coordinated service
area. Revenues and expenses for the Consortium are split evenly between the District and BART,
respectively, and the District's fmancial statements reflect its portion of revenues and expenses as
operating activities. The District has no equity interest in the Consortium.

Effective October 1, 2003, the Consortium discontinued the practice of rotating lead agency
responsibilities on an annual basis. Key administrative support functions are now permanently
assigned to each participating agency. Also effective October I, 2003, a Service Review Advisory
Committee (SRAC) was established to serve in an advisory capacity to the Service Review
Committee. The primary mission of the SRAC will be to advise on planning, policy and other
matters related to the Consortium; advocate for high quality, safe, reliable and courteous paratransit
services; and to provide a forum for public input and participation in the review, assessment and
evaluation of the ADA paratransit service.
In fiscal year 2014, the District incurred expenses of$26.081 million related to the Consortium.
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ALAMEDA-CONTRA COSTA TRANSIT DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS
ALAMEDA-CONTRA COSTA TRANSIT EMPLOYEES' PENSION PLAN (UNAUDITED)
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013
(In Thousands)

Pension Actuarial Plan
Actuarial
Valuation
Date

Actuarial
Value of
Assets

January I, 2011
January I, 2012
January I, 2013

$428,644
453,422
480,242

Actuarial
Accrued
Liability

Unfunded
Actuarial Accrued
Liability

$692,487
721,195
753,239

$263,843
267,773
272,997

Funded
Ratio

Covered
Payroll

Unfunded
Liability as a
Percent of Payroll

63%
63%
64%

$126,536
126,239
130,592

223%
212%
209%

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS
ALAMEDA-CONTRA COSTA TRANSIT EMPLOYEES' POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER
THAN PENSION (UNAUDITED)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2014
(In Thousands)

A. ATU Local 192 Benefits Trust
Actuarial
Valuation
Date

Actuarial
Value of
Assets
$8,542
6,237
3,868

June 30, 2012
June 30, 2013
July I, 2013

Actuarial
Accrued
Liability

Unfunded
Actuarial Accrued
Liability

$80,381
81,355
88,291

$71,839
75,118
84,423

Funded
Ratio

Covered
Pa:z:roll

Unfunded
Liability as a
Percent ofPa:z:roll

II%
8%
4%

$103,858
110,995
105,636

69%
68%
80%

Funded
Ratio

Covered
Pa:z:roll

Unfunded
Liability as a
Percent of Payroll

0%
0%
0%

$111,792
117,641
108,473

26%
27%
38%

B. Retiree Benefits Non-Trust Plan
Actuarial
Valuation
Date
June 30, 2012
June 30, 2013
July I, 2013

Actuarial
Value of
Assets
$

Actuarial
Accrued
Liabilit:z:

Unfunded
Actuarial Accrued
Liability

$28,498
31,930
41,193

$28,498
31,930
41,193
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ALAMEDA-CONTRA COSTA TRANSIT DISTRICT
COMPARATIVE SCHEDULES OF FUND NET POSlTION
BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITY- ENTERPRISE FUND
JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013
(In thousands)

2014

20ll

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS:

Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash and cash equivaJents

$91,210
40,138

$95,891
71,829

Receivables:
Federal and local grants:
Capital
Planning, operating and other
Property tax
Local sales tax
Other, principally trade receivables

20,796
7,910
7,001
17,748
2,220

18,946
2,250
10,799

Total receivables~ net

55,675

43 429

Due from Pension Trust Fund
Inventories at average cost

3,920
13,881
3 695

3,672
12,164
3,089

208,519

230,074

2,488

2,488

38,668
248,192

32,394
199 374

Total capital assets, net

286 860

231,768

Total noncurrent assets

289 348

234,256

Total assets

497,867

464 330

17,410
2,047
14,560
3,181
5,394
597
3,312

12,5ll
1,628
14,974
3,442

Prepaid expenses
Total current assets

8,076

3,358

NONCURRENT ASSETS:

Restricted for certificates of participation:
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 3)
Capital assets (Note 4):
Nondepreciable
Depreciable, net

LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED INFWWS
CURRENT LIABILlTIES:

Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued salaries and wages
Current portion of accrued vacation and sick leave
Due to Pension Trust Fund
Other accrued liabilities
Accrued interest payable
Unearned revenue
Current portion ofOPEB obligation
Current portion of claims liabilities
Current portion of remediation obligations
Current portion of certificates of participation

127
3 439

604
5,555
1,276
14,873
186
3,034

62 887

62,889

8,022
10,217
43,574
1,684
24,338

7,476
5,101
40,608
1,467
27,777

87 835

82,429

150 722

145,318

260,221

202,095
74,531
1,605
40,781
$319,012

12,820

Total current liabilities

4,804

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES:

Accrued vacation and sick leave
OPEB obligation

Claims liabilities
Remediation obligations
Certificates of participation
Total noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities
NET POSITION

Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for capital purchases
Restricted for debt service
Unrestricted

44,528
1,505

40,891
$347,145

TOTAL NET POSlTION
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ALAMEDA-CONTRA COSTA TRANSIT DISTRICT
COMPARATIVE SCHEDULES OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITY- ENTERPRISE FUND
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013
(In thousands)
2014

OPERATING REVENUES:
Passenger fares
Contract services
Other

2013

$52,508
11,929
4,165

$50,357
8,330
4,720

68,602

63,407

58,529
47,106
128,755
39,495
17,359
11,345
26,510
7,115
8,515
7,863

58,526
46,363
116,849
35,420
18,613
12,393
26,593
11,529
2,249
7,842

352,592

336,377

(283,990)

(272,970l

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSE):
Operating assistance:
Property taxes
Local sales tax
Local funds
Federal
State
Gain (loss) on sale of capital assets
Interest income
Interest expense

105,807
60,280
70,234
8,746
16,853
(90)
674
(1,898)

108,799
58,683
66,745
12,070
15,953
(1,175)
764
(1,338)

Net nonoperating revenues

260,606

260,501

Loss before capital contributions

(23,384)

(12,469)

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS

51,517

64,015

CHANGE IN NET POSITION

28,133

51,546

319,012

267,466

$347,145

$319,012

Total operating revenues
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Operator wages
Other wages
Fringe benefits
Depreciation
Fuel and oil
Other material and supplies
Services
Insurance
Net expenses of joint venture
Other
Total operating expenses
Operating loss

NET POSITION beginning of year
NET POSITION end of year
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ALAMEDA-CONTRA COSTA TRANSIT DISTRICT
COMPARATIVESCHEDULESOFCASHFLOWS
BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITY- ENTERPRISE FUND
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30,2014 AND 2013
(In thousands)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Cash received from customers
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services
Cash payments to employees for services
Other operating receipts

Net cash used in operating activities
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Operating assistance received
Interest paid on notes payable

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Acquisition and construction of capital assets
Capital contributions from grants
Proceeds from sale of capital assets
Principal paid on certificates of participation
Interest paid on certificates of participation

Net cash provided by (used in) capital and related financing activities
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Interest received on investments

Net cash provided by investing activities

2014

2013

$64,437
(70,676)
(234,304)
3,060

$58,687
(79,128)
(222,276)
3,155

(237,483)

(239,562)

250,386

278,430
(205)

250,386

278,225

(94,936)
49,667
259
(3,025)
(1,876)

(49,161)
51,133
130
(1,650)
(1,221)

(49,911)

(769)

636

361

636

361

CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(36,372)

38,255

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of year

170,208

131,953

$133,836

$170,208

SUMMARY OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS
REPORTED ON THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents (unrestricted)
Restricted cash and cash equivalents

$91,210
42,626

$95,891
74 317

Total cash and cash equivalents reported on the statement of net assets

$133,836

$170,208

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of year

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING LOSS TO
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Operating loss
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss
to net cash used in operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Effect of changes in assets and liabilities:

$

Receivables
Inventories
Due from Pension Trust Fund
Prepaid expenses and OPEB asset
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued salaries and wages
Accrued vacation and sick leave
Unearned revenue
Due to Pension Trust Fund
Other accrueds
Long term liabilities
Net cash used in operating activities

$
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(283,990)

$

(272,970)

39,495

35,420

1,138
(1,717)
(248)
(606)
4,897
419
(414)
(2,243)
(261)
590
5,457

402
(1,201)
(324)
424
(4,635)
267
(119)
(1,967)
149
(511)
5,503

(237,483)

$

(239,562)

ALAMEDA-CONTRA COSTA TRANSIT DISTRICT
COMPARATIVE SCHEDULES OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION
BUDGETARY BASIS- BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITY- ENTERPRISE FUND- TRANSIT ONLY
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30,2014 AND 2013
(In thousands)
2014

2013

OPERATING REVENUES:
$54,945
6,322
5,608
1,822
64
1,880

$52,976
2,460
5,875
1,819
72
3,952

70,641

67,154

76,564
29,244
24,327
3,940
14,741
36,912
2,225
61,262
13,628
4,025
10,178

79,360
29,439
24,656
3,978
15,329
34,812
2,000
57,282
20,235
3,882
13,157

Total subsidies

277,046

284,130

Total revenue & subsidies

347,687

351,284

58,530
47,107
88,897
39,859
26,509
17,359
529
13,695
2,898
7,115
26,081
2,176
1,240

58,525
46,362
77,837
39,013
26,592
18,613
461
12,817
2,413
11,528
26,754
5,719
653

331,995

327,287

Net revenues

15,692

23,997

Capital contributions
Depreciation

51,517
(39,495)

64,015
(35,420)

$27 714

$52,592

Passenger fares
Bart transfers

Contract services
Advertising

Interest income
Other
Total operating revenues
SUBSIDIES
Property taxes
Property taxes - Measure VV
Local sales tax - Measure B
Local sales tax - Measure J
Local operating assistance
State- AB11107
State - AB2972 Home to School
State-IDA
State- STA
State operating assistance other
Federal operating assistance

EXPENSES:
Operator wages
Other wages
Fringe benefits

Pension expense
Services

Fuel and lubricants
Office/printing supplies
Other materials and supplies
Utilities

Insurance
Expenses of joint venture
Other expenses

Interest expense
Total expenses

Excess of revenues over expenses

See accompanying notes to other supplementary information.

55
87

ALAMEDA-CONTRA COSTA TRANSIT DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, SUBSIDIES AND EXPENSES, BUDGET VERSUS ACTUAL
BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITY- ENTERPRISE FUND -TRANSIT ONLY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014
(In thousands)

Final
Budget

Actual
OPERATING REVENUES:
Passenger fares
Bart Transfers
Contract services
Advertising
Interest income
Other

$

Variance with
Final Budget
Positive
(Negative)

54,945
6,322
5,608
1,822

$53,000
3,600
5,600
1,919

64

so

1,880

2,431

$1,945
2,722
8
(97)
14
(551)

70,641

66,600

4,041

76,564
29,244
24,327
3,940
14,741
36,912
2,225
61,262
13,628
4,025
10,178

76,500
29,241
24,000
4,347
11,379
35,850
2,225
57,543
12,660
5,532
11,343

64

3,719
968
(1,507)
(1,165)

Total subsidies

277,046

270,620

6,426

Total revenue & subsidies

347,687

337,220

10,467

58,530
47,107
88,897
39,859
26,509
17,359
529
13,695
2,898
7,115
26,081
2,176
1,240

60,529
49,848
80,642
41,749
22,475
19,148
620
15,146
2,551
10,090
27,012
4,406
1,235

1,999
2,741
(8,255)
1,890
(4,034)
1,789
91
1,451
(347)
2,975
931
2,230
(5)

331,995

335,451

3,456

15,692

$1,769

$13,923

Total operating revenues
SUBSIDIES
Property taxes
Property taxes - Measure VV
Local sales tax ~ Measure B
Local sales tax - Measure J
Local operating assistance
State - AB 1107
State - AB2972 Home to School
State- TDA
State- STA
State operating assistance other
Federal operating assistance

EXPENSES:
Operator wages
Other wages
Fringe benefits
Pension expense
Services
Fuel and lubricants
Office/printing supplies
Other materials and supplies
Utilities
Insurance
Purchased transportation
Other expenses
Interest expense
Total operating expenses
Excess of revenues over expenses

Depreciation and amortization

(39,495)

Capital contributions

51,517

Change in net position

$27,714

See accompanying notes to other supplementary information.
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3
327
(407)
3,362
1,062

ALAMEDA-CONTRA COSTA TRANSIT DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES BY SERVICE AREA
BUSINESS-1YPE ACTIVITY- ENTERPRISE FUND- TRANSIT ONLY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014
(In thousands)
Special Transit
District l

Special Transit
District 2

Total

REVENUES:

Passenger fares
BART transfers

Contract services
Advertising

Interest income
Other

Total operating revenues
SUBSIDIES
Property taxes

Property taxes - Measure VV
Local sales tax - Measure B

Local sales tax - Measure J
Local operating assistance
State - AB 1107
State- AB2972 Home to School
State-TDA
State- STA

State operating assistance
Federal operating assistance

$52,374
6,026
5,608
1,605
57
1,658

$2,571
296
217
7
222

$54,945
6,322
5,608
1,822
64
1,880

67,328

3,313

70,641

61,257
29,244
22,422
3,940
10,991
36,912
2,225
50,155
11,834
4,025
9,114

15,307

1,064

76,564
29,244
24,327
3,940
14,741
36,912
2,225
61,262
13,628
4,025
10,178

1,905
3,750

11,107
1,794

Total subsidies

242,119

34,927

277,046

Total revenues and subsidies

309,447

38,240

347,687

52,419
41,493
79,029
35,435
23,830
15,290
466
12,063
2,553
6,267
23,387
1,917
1,102
34,789

6,111
5,614
9,868
4,424
2,679
2,069
63
1,632
345
848
2,694
259
138
4,706

58,530
47,107
88,897
39,859
26,509
17,359
529
13,695
2,898
7,115
26,081
2,176
1,240
39,495

Total expenses

330,040

41,450

371,490

Income (loss) before capital contributions

(20,593)

(3,210)

(23,803)

47,823

3,694

51,517

$27,230

$484

$27,714

EXPENSES:

Operator wages
Other wages
Fringe benefits

Pension
Services
Fuel and lubricants
Office/printing supplies

Bus parts/maintenance supplies
Utilities

Insurance
Purchased transportation
Other expenses
Interest Expense
Depreciation

Capital contributions

Change in net position

See accompanying notes to other supplementary information.
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ALAMEDA-CONTRA COSTA TRANSIT DISTRICT
NOTES TO OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Budgetary Basis ofAccounting

The District's fiscal policies establish the framework for the management and control of the
District's resources to ensure that the District remains fiscally sound. The District's goals and
policies, which are approved by the Board of Directors, determine where and how District resources
should be dedicated. For this reason, District goals, objectives, short and long-range planning and
performance analyses are incorporated into the budget development process.
It is the policy of the District that the Board of Directors approves an annual budget prior to the
beginning of each fiscal year. The budget is developed generally using the accrual basis of
accounting. See the following section for a reconciliation of budget versus generally accepted
accounting principles.

Budgetary Basis Differences

As discussed in Note 2, the accompanying basic financial statements have been prepared on the
accrual basis of accounting in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America (GAAP). The following is a summary of the differences between GAAP and
budgetary basis:
•
•

•

Perspective differences resulting from the Corporation and the Paratransit operations not
budgeted.
Capital outlay presented represents capital outlay funded by the District's operations and this
is reported as an outflow of budgetary resources but is not considered an expense for
financial reporting purposes.
Depreciation on capital assets funded by District operations is not budgeted, as it is not an
outflow of budgetary resources.

The effect of these differences between budgetary and GAAP accounting on the June 30, 2014 basic
fmancial statements of the District's budgeted fund is as follows (in thousands):
Increase in net position on GAAP basis
Perspective differences

$30,292
(2,169)

Increase in net position on the budgetary basis

$28,123
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ALAMEDA-CONTRA COSTA TRANSIT DISTRICT
NOTES TO OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Schedule of Revenues and Expense by Service Area
As discussed in note 1 to the financial statements, the District's basic financial statements include the
financial activities of the District's Special Transit Service Districts No. 1 and No.2. The amounts
recorded in this schedule do not reflect paratransit activity and activity of the AC Transit Financing
Corporation. The District's revenues between these Special Transit Service Districts are allocated
based predominantly either on estimated actual revenues, farebox revenue allocations or on a ratio
that uses service hours and service miles in Special Transit Service Districts No. 1 and No. 2. The
District's expenses between these Special Transit Districts are allocated based predominantly either
on operator wages or on a ratio that uses service hours and service miles in both Special Transit
Service Districts No. 1 and No. 2.
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